
06/22/17 

RESOLUTION NO. 21238 

Background 

6. li l

It is necessarv and desirable for The !llinois State Toll Highway Authority 
.I ...... ., .., 

I the "Tollway") to retain certain financial firms to provide, on an as-needed basis. 
underwriting services in connection with the issuance of new bonds. 

The Tollway issued the Request for Proposals #16 0 I 55 for Bond 
Cnderwriting Services (the ''RFP") to establish two pools of financial finns to be 
available to provide. on an as-needed basis, bond underwriting services for 
Tollway financings for an initial term of three years with renewal options of up to 
two years. 

Proposals received pursuant to the RFP were: (a) reviewed by the 
Procurement Department for administrative compliance and vendor responsibility; 
and (b) evaluated by an evaluation committee for Responsiveness (as defined in 
the RFP). As a result of the review and evaluation of the proposals, certain 
financial firms \Vere determined to be qualified to provide the aforementioned 
bond underwriting services, after which pricing was negotiated with such firms. 
As a result of the review and evaluation of the proposals and subsequent price 
negotiation. it is deemed in the best interest of the Tollway to select the following 
financial firms to serve. on an as-needed basis, as Senior JVfanaging Underwriter or 
Co-Senior Managing Underwriter for a Tollway bond issuance: 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.; 
Goldman. Sachs & Co.: 
Jefferies, LLC: 
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC: 
Loop Capital Markets LLC; 
�terrill Lynch Pierce Fenner & Smith Incorporated: 
:Vforgan Stanley & Co. LLC: 
Piper Jaffray & Co.: 
PNC Capital Markets LLC; 
RBC Capital Markets, LLC; 
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D. SPECIFICATIONS/QUALIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK 

D.1. GOAL:  The Tollway seeks to select: (i) a “Senior Pool” of up to fourteen (14) firms to serve, on an as-
needed basis as determined and assigned by the Tollway as described in Section B.7, as Senior Managing 
Underwriter or Co-Senior Managing Underwriter on Tollway bond issues; and (ii) a “Co-Manager Pool” of up to 
fifteen (15) firms to serve, on an as-needed basis as determined and assigned by the Tollway as described in 
Section B.7, as Co-Manager on Tollway bond issues, both for an initial term of three years with renewal options 
for up to an additional two years.  Inclusion in either of the pools described above does not guarantee 
participation in any or all Tollway bond financings.  The Tollway may, in its sole discretion, remove any member 
from either pool or discontinue the pools in their entirety.  

D.2. SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED:   

(1) Firms in the Senior Pool must be able to provide the following services.   

A Senior Managing Underwriter of a bond issue must be able to perform the following duties:  book 
runner; leader of the underwriting syndicate; pricing coordinator; lead marketer of the bond issue; 
structuring the financing (in consultation with the Tollway’s financial/municipal advisor(s), if any, and 
Tollway management / staff); review all documentation related to the bond issuance; compliance with 
disclosure standards; investor liaison; preparation of rating materials and presentations; and all other 
services conventional for a senior managing underwriter.   

A Co-Senior Managing Underwriter must be able to be a co-leader of the underwriting syndicate; assist, 
as may be requested by the Tollway, with the structuring of the financing and review of documentation; 
assist the Senior Managing Underwriter(s) with the marketing of the issue; and provide any other services 
conventional roles for a Co-Senior Managing Underwriter. The Co-Senior Managing Underwriter is 
expected to be integral to the transaction and participate in any aspects of the financing as determined 
to be necessary by the Tollway.   

In addition to duties specific to bond issuances to which firms are assigned, firms in the Senior Pool are 
expected to keep the Tollway informed of  fixed income market conditions, especially with respect to the 
municipal bond market, and other matters pertinent to public finance, and to meet with the Tollway at 
least once annually to provide detailed consideration of and recommendations regarding items the 
Vendor considers pertinent to the Tollway.  Firms in the Senior Pool are eligible to provide remarketing 
services for Tollway bond issues that have variable interest rates. 

(2) Firms in the Co-Manager Pool must be able to provide the following services. 

The Co-Managing Underwriter must be able to assist in the marketing of the bond issue and to provide 
discrete “niches” in the marketing of the bonds.  The Co-Manager’s primary responsibility is to broaden 
the market for the Tollway’s bonds in order to help ensure that the Tollway achieves the lowest possible 
interest cost on its bond issues.  Co-Managers may be required to take part in one or more Underwriting 
Syndicate meetings in the weeks before the expected bond pricing and to submit marketing plans and 
estimated interest rate scales in the days before the expected bond pricing.   

 
 
 
 





State of Illinois RFP 25 
Section 1. Part D. Specifications/Qualifications/Statement of Work 
V.16.1 

the expected amount of money each will receive in the Subcontractor Disclosure form found in 
Section 3 Part I. 

D.6.2. The Offeror shall notify the State of any additional or substitute subcontractors hired during the
term of the contract.  If required, Offeror shall provide the State a copy of all such subcontracts 
within fifteen (15) days after execution of the contract or the subcontract, whichever occurs 
later. 

D.6.3. Any subcontracts entered into prior to award of the contract are done at the sole risk of the
Offeror and subcontractor(s). 

D.7. WHERE SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED 

D.7.1. Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, all services shall be performed in the United States.
This information and the economic impact on Illinois and its residents may be considered in the 
evaluation. If the Offeror performs the services purchased hereunder in another country in 
violation of this provision, such action may be deemed by the State as a breach of the contract 
by Offeror. 

D.7.2. Offeror shall disclose the locations where the services required shall be performed and the
known or anticipated value of the services to be performed at each location.  If the Offeror 
received additional consideration in the evaluation based on work being performed in the 
United States, it shall be a breach of contract if the Offeror shifts any such work outside the 
United States. 

D.7.3. Location where services will be performed:  540 West Madison Street, Chicago, IL 60661

D.7.4. Percentage of contract of services performed at this location:  100%

D.8. OFFEROR’S PROPOSED SOLUTION TO MEET THE STATE’S REQUIREMENTS (Packet 1):  Please 
respond in the following prescribed format: 

The Proposal volumes shall be organized and formatted in separately bound volumes (using 
three-ring or loose-leaf binders). All hardcopies shall be submitted on 8.5-inch by 11-inch paper.  
Legibility, clarity, and completeness are essential.  Any page limits must be strictly adhered to.  
Respondents are advised to adhere to the submittal requirements of this RFP.  Failure to comply with 
the instructions of this RFP may be cause for rejection of a non-compliant proposal.  Offerors are 
encouraged to provide adequate details for any request for information as noted in this RFP. 

The Offeror shall tab and title the sections of their response as noted below.  PAGE LIMIT:  The sum of 
the pages in Tabs 3, 4, 5 and 6 may not exceed 17 pages – exceeding the page limit may result in 
disqualification.  Proposal scoring will be based on the Respondent’s submittal for the following 
elements: 

Tab 1 - Table of Contents: The Offeror shall include a table of contents in its Offer.  Offers shall be page 
numbered sequentially from front to back. 

Tab 2 - Transmittal Letter: An individual authorized to legally bind the Offeror shall sign the transmittal 
letter. The person who signs the transmittal letter will be considered the contact person for all matters 
pertaining to the Offer unless the Offeror designates another person as such contact in the letter. The 
letter shall include the Offeror’s mailing address, e-mail address, fax number and telephone number. 
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Any request for confidential treatment of information shall be included in the transmittal letter in 
addition to the specific statutory basis supporting the request, an explanation of why disclosure of the 
information is not in the best interest of the public, and the specific basis in the Illinois Freedom of 
Information Act (5 ILCS 140/7) for the exemption from disclosure of such information. The transmittal 
letter shall also contain the name, address, email address, and telephone number of the individual 
authorized to respond to the Illinois Tollway about the confidential nature of the information. 

Tab 3 - Executive Summary:  The Offeror shall prepare an Executive Summary that includes statements 
that: (i) identify whether the Offeror is responding for the Senior Pool or the Co-Manager Pool 
(RESPONDENTS MAY NOT APPLY TO BOTH POOLS); (ii) demonstrate the Offeror understands the 
services specified in the RFP; (iii) the Offeror is registered and in good standing as a broker dealer with 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; (iv) the Offeror will agree with Section 3 F “Standard Terms 
and Conditions” and that any exceptions to such agreement are included in Section 3 G; and (iv) provide 
a brief (one paragraph) overview of qualifications. 

Tab 4 – Experience/Qualifications:  Please note that for questions or information requests related to 
personnel, applicants to the Senior Pool must provide information on personnel related to all aspects of 
public finance (deal origination, underwriting, marketing), whereas applicants to the Co-Manager Pool 
may provide information limited to marketing and distribution.  Personnel will be evaluated by their 
length of experience in the industry, experience with transportation and large governmental issuers, and 
other experience deemed relevant for the pool for which you applied, and references to the extent 
obtained. 

Tab 4(a) Experience/Qualifications of the Firm 

• Identify: the location of the firm headquarters and the principal place(s) of business related to 
public finance; the locations and number of employees of each of the public finance offices and 
underwriting desks located in the United States; and the number of U.S. Sales professionals, 
differentiating between retail and institutional.  For purposes of the Senior Pool, a Chicago-area 
public finance office is preferred. 

• Provide a brief overview of your firm including its business operations, organizational structure, 
and total number of employees. 

• Indicate if your firm is a minority, female, veterans or disabled – owned business enterprise. 
• Provide a listing of your transportation clients within the past three years, noting the services 

provided.  
• Provide a listing of up to five additional clients for which you have served as senior managing 

underwriter, co-senior managing underwriter, or co-managing underwriter that you deem 
particularly representative of the services requested by this RFP for the pool for which you have 
applied. 

• Please describe your firm’s underwriting experience for tax-exempt obligations of issues of $100 
million or more of transportation revenue bonds from January 1, 2014 to present in tabular 
form. Include, at a minimum, the issuer, sale date, size of issue, security (e.g. toll road revenue, 
sales tax revenue), interest rate type (fixed/variable), issuer credit ratings at the time of issue, 
your firm’s role and your firm’s percentage of takedown compensation.  Limit this list to the 
thirty (30) transactions you deem most representative of your abilities to provide the services 
requested by this RFP for the pool for which you have applied.  To the extent your list, when 
limited to transportation revenue bonds, is less than thirty (30) transactions, you may list other 
transactions you deem representative of your firm’s abilities to provide the services requested 
for the pool for which you have applied.   This list requested in this Tab 4(a) may be included in 
Tab 9 without counting against the page limit for Tabs 3-6. 
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Tab 4(b) Experience/Qualifications of Personnel 

• Identify the firm representative who would be directly responsible for overseeing this 
engagement. 

• Provide a staffing plan listing the individuals who would be assigned to the Tollway. In summary 
form, list their name, title, engagement role, office location, time with the firm, and summarize 
their qualifications and experience.  Key personnel’s relevant experience at prior firms may be 
included.  Information relating to personnel responsible for marketing the Bonds may be 
provided on an aggregate rather than an individual basis.  The respondent may (but is not 
required to) divide such aggregate information into sub-categories (e.g. institutional vs retail, 
tax-exempt vs. taxable, geographically, etc.).  Information relating to marketing personnel 
should be accompanied by narrative describing the plan for utilizing such marketing personnel 
and how the respondent’s marketing resources provide value to the Tollway in the context of 
the pool for which the respondent is applying.  Note, resumes of key personnel may be attached 
in Tab 9 without counting towards the 17-page limit for response to Tabs 3-6. 

• The Offeror shall provide references for three transactions within the past twelve months for 
which: (a) the Offeror served as bond underwriter; and (b) the primary contact person 
designated in the Transmittal Letter served as the primary contact for the Offeror.  If the 
primary contact designated in the Transmittal Letter has not worked on three such transactions, 
then other transactions for which the Offeror served as bond underwriter may be included.  
Submit references per the form included in Section 3, Part J.  The references may be included in 
Tab 9 without counting against the 17-page limit for response to Tabs 3-6.  The Tollway may 
contact one or more of these references for each Offeror and reserves the right to contact 
additional references, and information from such references may be factored into scoring. 

Planned Changes: Describe any potential or planned changes or initiatives that, in the next twelve 
months, could significantly change any of the information provided regarding the firm and its personnel.  
Include any plans for significant restructuring of staff.  The Tollway reserves the right to reconsider 
award if, subsequent to award, there are changes related to key personnel. 

Tab 5 – Financial Capacity 

The Tollway will allocate up to 10 points to financial capacity for applicants to the Senior Pool and up to 
5 points for applicants to the Co-Manager Pool.  In addition to the information requested below, the 
Tollway may consider information from the Offeror’s financial statements and/or credit rating agencies 
in assessing financial capacity. 

Provide your firm’s total capital and uncommitted excess net capital as of each of the most recent 
quarter ends available and the most recent two fiscal year ends available.  As of each of those dates, 
specify any limitations that existed on utilizing such capital for public finance. 

Tab 6 - Technical Approach  

Tab 6(a) – Technical Approach – Structuring (only Senior Pool applicants to respond) 

• Identify and describe recommendations and strategies your firm would propose to best position 
the Tollway to achieve a favorable cost of borrowing during the years 2017-2021 on its estimated 
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$1.6 billion of projected new money bond issuance (per the schedule included in section D.3 of 
this RFP).  Describe any challenges you foresee with respect to your recommendations. 

• Provide refunding recommendations and other strategies for managing the Tollway’s bond 
portfolio during the next five years, including regarding the Tollway’s $1.2 billion of variable rate 
bonds, all of which are swapped to synthetic fixed rate.  Information on the Tollway’s bond 
portfolio can be found on the Tollway’s website (http://www.illinoistollway.com/) or the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system (http://emma.msrb.org/). 

• Provide descriptions of two or three recent examples of municipal financings that demonstrate 
your firm's creative skills and services for the benefit of its municipal clientele, as relating to the 
structuring and underwriting of a bond financing. 

• Assuming your firm was the lead (bookrunning) Senior Managing Underwriter on an Illinois 
Tollway bond issue, provide your firm’s ideas on how best to conduct a negotiated sale.  For 
purposes of this response, assume a $300 million senior lien fixed rate bond issue with maturities 
in years 15-25.  You may include recommendations on the optimal size of the underwriting 
group, including the number of senior managing underwriters, co-senior managing underwriters 
and co-managing underwriters, and recommendations for supporting fair allocations among 
members of the underwriting group.   

Tab 6(b) – Technical Approach – Marketing 

Provide a marketing plan for Tollway bonds, assuming a $300 million senior lien fixed rate bond 
issue with maturities in years 15-25, which capitalizes on your firm’s marketing strengths to help 
broaden the market for the Tollway’s bonds.  This should include information on your 
distribution capabilities and identification of types (and names if possible) of key potential buyers 
that you would approach.  Your discussion should include how you would deploy your retail (if/as 
applicable) and institutional sales distribution capabilities and a description of the investor base 
you feel should be targeted and strategies on how to reach those investors. This information 
should demonstrate how your firm will reach buyers that broaden the market for the Tollway’s 
bonds, helping to ensure that the Tollway obtains the lowest possible interest rate.  Topics may 
include issues regarding bond structure to the extent impactful on marketing efforts, bond 
ratings considered most beneficial to marketing efforts, credit rating strategies, investor 
marketing strategies, investor presentations and frequency of roadshows, timing of printing, sale 
and closing, and any other matters the Offeror deems pertinent to the marketing and sale of the 
bonds.  Provide examples of bond issues for which the competitive strengths that you would 
ascribe to your bond sales area benefitted the transaction. 

 
Any deviation from the service requirements or any requirements that the Offeror cannot satisfy 
may affect evaluation of the Offer and may disqualify the Offeror.  A response such as, “We will 
meet or exceed the requirements” without any details of how the requirement will be met may 
not be considered an acceptable response and may be scored accordingly.  

Tab 7 - Financials: The Offeror shall provide the last three (3) most recent Year End Financial 
Statements.   

Tab 8 - Pricing:  Pricing must be submitted separately.  Include a page as a placeholder.  For applicants 
to the Senior Pool, include on the placeholder page: “Pricing submitted separately in a separate, 
sealed envelope with disc or USB in Packet #2.” For applicants to the Co-Manager Pool, include on the 
placeholder page: “Applicant to Co-Manager Pool – Pricing not required.”  
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Tab 9 - Deal Lists, Resumes and References:  Deal Lists requested for Tab 4(a) and Resumes and 
References requested for Tab 4(b) may be included in this Tab 9 without counting against the 17-page 
limit for Tabs 3-6. 

 

 

 

 

Include Part D and related attachments in Packet 1 



 

BofAML  IS  NOT  YOUR MUNICIPAL  ADVISOR  OR  FIDUCIARY.  Bank  of  America Merrill  Lynch  (“BofAML”)  is  providing  the 
information contained herein for discussion purposes only either as an underwriter or in anticipation of being engaged to serve 
as  an  underwriter.  By  providing  the  information  contained  herein  pursuant  to  the  responses  to  requests  for  proposals  or 
qualifications exemption provided under SEC Rule 15Ba1‐1(d)(3)(iv) BofAML is not acting as your “municipal advisor” within the 
meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”), and does not owe a fiduciary duty to 
you pursuant to the Act with respect to the information and material contained in this communication. BofAML is either serving 
as an underwriter or  is seeking to serve as an underwriter on a future transaction and not as a financial advisor or municipal 
advisor. The primary role of BofAML, as an underwriter, is to purchase securities with a view to distribution in an arm’s‐length 
commercial transaction between you and BofAML and BofAML has financial and other interests that differ from yours. BofAML 
is acting for its own interests. You should discuss any information and material contained in this communication with any and 
all  of  your  own  internal  or  external municipal  and/or  financial,  legal,  accounting,  tax  and  other  advisors  and  experts,  as 
applicable, to the extent you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material. 
 
As set forth in Bank of America Corporation’s 2015 Resolution Plan submitted to the Federal Reserve and the Federal Deposit 
Insurance  Corporation  on  July  1,  2015,  Bank  of  America  Corporation  is  undertaking  certain  initiatives  to  enhance  its 
resolvability, through the realignment of certain of its subsidiaries and businesses. As part of these initiatives, Bank of America 
Corporation proposes to separate its U.S. institutional and retail broker‐dealer businesses currently conducted by Merrill Lynch, 
Pierce, Fenner & Smith  Incorporated (“MLPF&S”)  into two  legal entities. Specifically,  it  is contemplated that retail clients will 
remain with MLPF&S and institutional clients will be transitioned to a new registered broker‐dealer, BofAML Securities, Inc. by 
the end of the second quarter of 2017.  Bank of America Corporation expects BofAML Securities  Inc. to continue to offer the 
same services MLPF&S currently provides to  its  institutional and municipal clients.  We wish to  inform you that to the extent 
certain of  the underwriting  services  that are  contemplated by  this  response will be performed on or after  the  time of  this 
transition, such underwriting services will be performed by either BofAML Securities, Inc. or Bank of America, N.A. when such 
transition occurs. A copy of the Public Executive Summary of Bank of America Corporation’s Resolution Plan dated July 1, 2015 
may be found at the following website:  https://www.federalreserve.gov/bankinforeg/resolution‐plans/boa‐1g‐20150701.pdf 
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Confidential Notice to Recipient 

“Bank of America Merrill Lynch”  is the marketing name for the global banking and global markets businesses of Bank of America 
Corporation. Lending, derivatives, and other commercial banking activities are performed globally by banking affiliates of Bank of 
America Corporation,  including Bank of America, N.A., member FDIC. Securities, strategic advisory, and other  investment banking 
activities are performed globally by investment banking affiliates of Bank of America Corporation (“Investment Banking Affiliates”), 
including,  in the United States, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith  Incorporated and Merrill Lynch Professional Clearing Corp., 
which are both registered broker dealers and members of FINRA and SIPC, and, in other jurisdictions, by locally registered entities. 

Investment products offered by Investment Banking Affiliates:   
Are Not FDIC Insured * May Lose Value * Are Not Bank Guaranteed. 

These materials have been prepared by one or more subsidiaries of Bank of America Corporation for the client or potential client to 
whom such materials are directly addressed and delivered (the “Company”) in connection with an actual or potential mandate or 
engagement and may not be used or relied upon for any purpose other than as specifically contemplated by a written agreement 
with us.   These materials are based on  information provided by or on behalf of the Company and/or other potential transaction 
participants,  from  public  sources  or  otherwise  reviewed  by  us.   We  assume  no  responsibility  for  independent  investigation  or 
verification of such information (including, without limitation, data from third party suppliers) and have relied on such information 
being complete and accurate  in all material respects.   To  the extent such  information  includes estimates and  forecasts of  future 
financial  performance  prepared  by  or  reviewed  with  the  managements  of  the  Company  and/or  other  potential  transaction 
participants or obtained from public sources, we have assumed that such estimates and forecasts have been reasonably prepared 
on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of such managements (or, with respect to estimates and 
forecasts obtained  from public  sources,  represent  reasonable estimates).   No  representation or warranty, express or  implied,  is 
made  as  to  the  accuracy  or  completeness  of  such  information  and  nothing  contained  herein  is,  or  shall  be  relied  upon  as,  a 
representation, whether  as  to  the past,  the present or  the  future.    These materials were designed  for use by  specific persons 
familiar with the business and affairs of the Company and are being furnished and should be considered only  in connection with 
other information, oral or written, being provided by us in connection herewith.  These materials are not intended to provide the 
sole basis for evaluating, and should not be considered a recommendation with respect to, any transaction or other matter.  These 
materials do not constitute an offer or solicitation to sell or purchase any securities and are not a commitment by Bank of America 
Corporation or any of its affiliates to provide or arrange any financing for any transaction or to purchase any security in connection 
therewith.    These  materials  are  for  discussion  purposes  only  and  are  subject  to  our  review  and  assessment  from  a  legal, 
compliance, accounting policy and  risk perspective, as appropriate,  following our discussion with  the Company.   We assume no 
obligation  to update or otherwise  revise  these materials.    These materials have not been prepared with  a  view  toward public 
disclosure under applicable securities  laws or otherwise, are  intended  for  the benefit and use of  the Company, and may not be 
reproduced, disseminated, quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent.  These materials may not 
reflect information known to other professionals in other business areas of Bank of America Corporation and its affiliates. 

Bank of America Corporation and its affiliates (collectively, the “BAC Group”) comprise a full service securities firm and commercial 
bank engaged  in  securities,  commodities and derivatives  trading,  foreign exchange and other brokerage activities, and principal 
investing  as  well  as  providing  investment,  corporate  and  private  banking,  asset  and  investment management,  financing  and 
strategic  advisory  services  and  other  commercial  services  and  products  to  a  wide  range  of  corporations,  governments  and 
individuals, domestically and offshore, from which conflicting interests or duties, or a perception thereof, may arise.  In the ordinary 
course of these activities, parts of the BAC Group at any time may invest on a principal basis or manage funds that invest, make or 
hold long or short positions, finance positions or trade or otherwise effect transactions, for their own accounts or the accounts of 
customers, in debt, equity or other securities or financial instruments (including derivatives, bank loans or other obligations) of the 
Company, potential counterparties or any other company that may be involved in a transaction.  Products and services that may be 
referenced  in the accompanying materials may be provided through one or more affiliates of Bank of America Corporation.   We 
have adopted policies and guidelines designed  to preserve  the  independence of our  research analysts. The BAC Group prohibits 
employees from, directly or indirectly, offering a favorable research rating or specific price target, or offering to change a rating or 
price  target  to a subject company as consideration or  inducement  for  the  receipt of business or  for compensation and  the BAC 
Group prohibits research analysts from being directly compensated for involvement in investment banking transactions. The views 
expressed herein are the views solely of Global Corporate and Investment Banking, and no inference should be made that the views 
expressed represent the view of the firm’s research department. We are required to obtain, verify and record certain information 
that  identifies  the Company, which  information  includes  the name and address of  the Company and other  information  that will 
allow us to identify the Company in accordance, as applicable, with the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107‐56 (signed into law 
October 26, 2001)) and such other laws, rules and regulations as applicable within and outside the United States. 

We do not provide legal, compliance, tax or accounting advice.  Accordingly, any statements contained herein as to tax matters 
were neither written nor intended by us to be used and cannot be used by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties 
that may be  imposed on  such  taxpayer.  If  any person uses or  refers  to  any  such  tax  statement  in promoting, marketing or 
recommending a partnership or other entity,  investment plan or arrangement to any taxpayer, then the statement expressed 
herein is being delivered to support the promotion or marketing of the transaction or matter addressed and the recipient should 
seek advice based on its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.  Notwithstanding anything that may appear 
herein or in other materials to the contrary, the Company shall be permitted to disclose the tax treatment and tax structure of a 
transaction (including any materials, opinions or analyses relating to such tax treatment or tax structure, but without disclosure 
of identifying information or, except to the extent relating to such tax structure or tax treatment, any nonpublic commercial or 
financial  information) on and after the earliest to occur of the date of  (i) public announcement of discussions relating to such 
transaction, (ii) public announcement of such transaction or (iii) execution of a definitive agreement (with or without conditions) 
to enter into such transaction; provided, however, that if such transaction is not consummated for any reason, the provisions of 
this sentence shall cease to apply.  Copyright 2017 Bank of America Corporation.  



 

“Bank of America Merrill Lynch” is the marketing name for the global banking and global markets businesses of Bank of America Corporation. Lending, derivatives, and 
other  commercial  banking  activities  are  performed  globally  by  banking  affiliates  of  Bank  of  America  Corporation,  including  Bank  of  America, N.A., member  FDIC. 
Securities,  strategic  advisory,  and  other  investment  banking  activities  are  performed  globally  by  investment  banking  affiliates  of  Bank  of  America  Corporation 
(“Investment Banking Affiliates”), including, in the United States, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and Merrill Lynch Professional Clearing Corp., both 
of which  are  registered  broker  dealers  and members  of  FINRA  and  SIPC,  and,  in  other  jurisdictions,  by  locally  registered  entities.  Investment  products  offered  by 
Investment Banking Affiliates:  Are Not FDIC Insured * May Lose Value * Are Not Bank Guaranteed.   

 

 
 

Dear Desiree:  

Bank of America Merrill  Lynch  (“BofAML” or  the  “Firm”)  is pleased  to  submit our  response  to  the  Illinois State Toll 
Highway Authority’s (the “Tollway”) Request for Proposal for Bond Underwriting Services. Our underwriting leadership, 
commitment to the municipal market, and experience with the Tollway and the State of Illinois (the “State”) are three 
primary reasons why we are exceedingly well qualified to serve as a Senior Manager on your prospective financings.  
The following summarizes the strengths and qualifications of BofAML to serve the Tollway in this capacity:  

Leadership  in  both  the Municipal Market  and  in  the  State  of  Illinois.  BofAML  is  the  #1  ranked  underwriter  of 
municipal  bonds  nationally  since  January  1,  2014  (the period  referenced by  the  Tollway),  having  served  as  senior 
manager on over 900 transactions for over $110 billion  in par amount. Over the same timeframe,  in the competitive 
market, where price is the sole determinant of winning bids, BofAML is the top ranked senior manager with over a 20% 
market share. BofAML has been the #1 competitive senior managing underwriter for each of the last 25 years. Our firm 
is also a  leader  in structuring and selling  large bond  issues.   Since 2014, we have  led nearly 175  issues between $250 
and $500 million (total par of $35.4 billion) and 182  issues greater than $500 million (total par of $64.7 billion).   Our 
firm has sold more issues of $500 million par amount or more than any other firm since 2014.  Additionally, within the 
State  of  Illinois  over  this  period,  BofAML  is  the  #1  ranked  underwriter,  having  served  as  senior manager  on  27 
transactions, totaling $6.6 billion. In the last 20 months, we have served as a senior manager for the Tollway, O’Hare 
International Airport,  the City of Chicago  (General Obligation Bonds),  the  Illinois  Finance Authority  (State Revolving 
Fund Program), and the State of Illinois, among others. Furthermore, BofAML has remained committed to the State by 
winning more than $2.0 billion in competitive bids for the G.O. Bonds of the  State of Illinois – and we are the only 
firm  to win  the State’s G.O. bonds via competitive sale over  the  last  two consecutive years.   Our  industry  leading 
banking  and underwriting professionals,  as well  as our broad distribution network, have been  the driving  forces  in 
achieving the strong execution results for our Illinois clients and others across the municipal market.  

Dedicated  and  Experienced  Banking  Team.  BofAML’s  strong  team  of  professionals  brings  an  unmatched  level  of 
experience, expertise, and dedication to our municipal and toll clients. The BofAML team that will be assigned to the 
Tollway  includes our  firm’s most senior toll  finance,  Illinois  finance, credit, underwriting, and sales professionals that 
have over 200 years of combined  industry experience. Our  lead bankers have over 20 years of experience working 
with  the Tollway,  including experience  in  structuring a Tollway  financing  recognized as  the “Midwest Deal of  the 
Year” as well as creating a marketing plan for the inaugural “Move Illinois” capital improvement program financing.   
Our team has been assembled to include individuals with experience and expertise in every discipline that will aide in 
the  successful  execution  of  the  Tollway’s  transactions.    Our  toll  road  and  underwriting/institutional  marketing 
specialists, located in New York, will work seamlessly with our team in Chicago to design a cost‐effective financing and 
execution plan. Our broader team includes credit rating and commercial bank specialists, interest rate swap specialists, 
variable rate debt specialists, and others to provide expertise on the entirety of the Tollway’s capital structure.   

Record of Service  to  the Tollway. BofAML and our  team have a  longstanding  record of  service and  support  to  the 
Tollway.   Our team members have had the privilege of serving as bankers on several Tollway  issues, most recently as 
senior manager on  the $400 million Toll Highway Senior Bonds, 2015 Series A sold  in  July 2015. Our service on  this 
transaction involved a comprehensive marketing strategy and pricing in the midst of a volatile market which eventually 
generated  $1.48  billion  in  orders.  Through  our  team’s  previous  work  designing  and  subsequently  updating  the 
investor marketing presentation  that serves as  the basis  for  the Tollway’s most  recent  financings, we are  familiar 
with  the  Tollway’s  organizational  structure,  credit  profile,  and  legal  underpinnings  and  will  draw  upon  that 
knowledge to enhance the Tollway’s structuring, rating agency and investor marketing efforts.  BofAML also serves as 
the Remarketing Agent for certain series of the Tollway’s variable rate programs and as a credit facility provider and a 
swap counterparty for the Tollway on two outstanding swaps with over $360 million in notional amount. 

   

February 3, 2017 
Desiree Liberti, Purchasing Supervisor 
Illinois State Toll Highway Authority   
2700 Ogden Avenue 
Downers Grove, IL 60515 
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148     Bank of America 2013

Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income
(Dollars in millions, except per share information) 2013 2012 2011
Interest income    

Loans and leases $ 36,470 $ 38,880 $ 44,966
Debt securities 9,749 8,908 9,525
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 1,229 1,502 2,147
Trading account assets 4,706 5,094 5,961
Other interest income 2,866 3,016 3,637

Total interest income 55,020 57,400 66,236

Interest expense    
Deposits 1,396 1,990 3,002
Short-term borrowings 2,923 3,572 4,599
Trading account liabilities 1,638 1,763 2,212
Long-term debt 6,798 9,419 11,807

Total interest expense 12,755 16,744 21,620
Net interest income 42,265 40,656 44,616

Noninterest income    
Card income 5,826 6,121 7,184
Service charges 7,390 7,600 8,094
Investment and brokerage services 12,282 11,393 11,826
Investment banking income 6,126 5,299 5,217
Equity investment income 2,901 2,070 7,360
Trading account profits 7,056 5,870 6,697
Mortgage banking income (loss) 3,874 4,750 (8,830)
Gains on sales of debt securities 1,271 1,662 3,374
Other income (loss) (29) (2,034) 8,215
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on available-for-sale debt securities:    

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses (21) (57) (360)
Less: Portion of other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized in other comprehensive income 1 4 61

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings on available-for-sale debt securities (20) (53) (299)
Total noninterest income 46,677 42,678 48,838
Total revenue, net of interest expense 88,942 83,334 93,454

Provision for credit losses 3,556 8,169 13,410

Noninterest expense   
Personnel 34,719 35,648 36,965
Occupancy 4,475 4,570 4,748
Equipment 2,146 2,269 2,340
Marketing 1,834 1,873 2,203
Professional fees 2,884 3,574 3,381
Amortization of intangibles 1,086 1,264 1,509
Data processing 3,170 2,961 2,652
Telecommunications 1,593 1,660 1,553
Other general operating 17,307 18,274 21,101
Goodwill impairment — — 3,184
Merger and restructuring charges — — 638

Total noninterest expense 69,214 72,093 80,274
Income (loss) before income taxes 16,172 3,072 (230)

Income tax expense (benefit) 4,741 (1,116) (1,676)
Net income $ 11,431 $ 4,188 $ 1,446

Preferred stock dividends 1,349 1,428 1,361
Net income applicable to common shareholders $ 10,082 $ 2,760 $ 85

Per common share information    
Earnings $ 0.94 $ 0.26 $ 0.01
Diluted earnings 0.90 0.25 0.01
Dividends paid 0.04 0.04 0.04

Average common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 10,731,165 10,746,028 10,142,625
Average diluted common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 11,491,418 10,840,854 10,254,824

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 11,431 $ 4,188 $ 1,446
Other comprehensive income (loss), net-of-tax:

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities (8,166) 1,802 (4,270)
Net change in derivatives 592 916 (549)
Employee benefit plan adjustments 2,049 (65) (444)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (135) (13) (108)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (5,660) 2,640 (5,371)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,771 $ 6,828 $ (3,925)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

 December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012
Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 131,322 $ 110,752
Time deposits placed and other short-term investments 11,540 18,694
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (includes $75,614 and $98,670 measured at fair 

value) 190,328 219,924

Trading account assets (includes $111,817 and $115,821 pledged as collateral) 200,993 227,775
Derivative assets 47,495 53,497
Debt securities:   

Carried at fair value (includes $51,408 and $63,349 pledged as collateral) 268,795 310,850
Held-to-maturity, at cost (fair value – $52,430 and $50,270; $20,869 and $22,461 pledged as collateral) 55,150 49,481

Total debt securities 323,945 360,331
Loans and leases (includes $10,042 and $9,002 measured at fair value and $74,166 and $50,289 pledged as collateral) 928,233 907,819
Allowance for loan and lease losses (17,428) (24,179)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 910,805 883,640
Premises and equipment, net 10,475 11,858
Mortgage servicing rights (includes $5,042 and $5,716 measured at fair value) 5,052 5,851
Goodwill 69,844 69,976
Intangible assets 5,574 6,684
Loans held-for-sale (includes $6,656 and $11,659 measured at fair value) 11,362 19,413
Customer and other receivables 59,448 71,467
Other assets (includes $18,055 and $26,490 measured at fair value) 124,090 150,112

Total assets $ 2,102,273 $2,209,974

Assets of consolidated variable interest entities included in total assets above (isolated to settle the liabilities of the variable interest entities)

Trading account assets $ 8,412 $ 7,906
Derivative assets 185 333
Loans and leases 109,118 123,227
Allowance for loan and lease losses (2,674) (3,658)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 106,444 119,569
Loans held-for-sale 1,384 1,969
All other assets 4,577 4,654

Total assets of consolidated variable interest entities $ 121,002 $ 134,431

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

 December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012
Liabilities   
Deposits in U.S. offices:   

Noninterest-bearing $ 373,092 $ 372,546
Interest-bearing (includes $1,899 and $2,262 measured at fair value) 667,714 654,332

Deposits in non-U.S. offices:  
Noninterest-bearing 8,233 7,573
Interest-bearing 70,232 70,810

Total deposits 1,119,271 1,105,261
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (includes $33,684 and $42,639 measured at fair 

value) 198,106 293,259

Trading account liabilities 83,469 73,587
Derivative liabilities 37,407 46,016
Short-term borrowings (includes $1,520 and $4,074 measured at fair value) 45,999 30,731
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (includes $11,233 and $16,594 measured at fair value and $484 and $513 of reserve for 

unfunded lending commitments) 135,662 148,579

Long-term debt (includes $47,035 and $49,161 measured at fair value) 249,674 275,585
Total liabilities 1,869,588 1,973,018

Commitments and contingencies (Note 6 – Securitizations and Other Variable Interest Entities, Note 7 – Representations and Warranties 
Obligations and Corporate Guarantees and Note 12 – Commitments and Contingencies)

Shareholders’ equity   
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized – 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 3,407,790 and 3,685,410 shares 13,352 18,768
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.01 par value; authorized – 12,800,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 

10,591,808,296 and 10,778,263,628 shares 155,293 158,142

Retained earnings 72,497 62,843
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (8,457) (2,797)

Total shareholders’ equity 232,685 236,956
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,102,273 $2,209,974

Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities included in total liabilities above   
Short-term borrowings (includes $77 and $872 of non-recourse borrowings) $ 1,150 $ 3,731
Long-term debt (includes $16,209 and $29,476 of non-recourse debt) 19,448 34,256
All other liabilities (includes $138 and $149 of non-recourse liabilities) 253 360

Total liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities $ 20,851 $ 38,347

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred
Stock

Common Stock and
Additional Paid-in

Capital Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Other

Total
Shareholders’

Equity(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands) Shares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 16,562 10,085,155 $ 150,905 $ 60,849 $ (66) $ (2) $ 228,248
Net income    1,446  1,446

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable
equity securities     (4,270)  (4,270)

Net change in derivatives     (549)  (549)
Employee benefit plan adjustments     (444)  (444)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments    (108)  (108)
Dividends paid:      

Common  (413)   (413)
Preferred   (1,325)   (1,325)

Issuance of preferred stock and warrants 2,918 2,082 5,000

Common stock issued in connection with exchanges of
preferred stock and trust preferred securities (1,083) 400,000 2,754 (36) 1,635

Common stock issued under employee plans and
related tax effects 50,783 880   2 882

Other   (1)  (1)
Balance, December 31, 2011 18,397 10,535,938 156,621 60,520 (5,437) — 230,101
Net income 4,188 4,188

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable
equity securities 1,802 1,802

Net change in derivatives 916 916
Employee benefit plan adjustments (65) (65)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (13) (13)
Dividends paid:

Common (437) (437)
Preferred (1,472) (1,472)

Net Issuance of preferred stock 667 667

Common stock issued in connection with exchanges of
preferred stock and trust preferred securities (296) 49,867 412 44 160

Common stock issued under employee plans and
related tax effects 192.459 1,109 1,109

Balance, December 31, 2012 18,768 10,778,264 158,142 62,843 (2,797) — 236,956
Net income 11,431 11,431

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable
equity securities (8,166) (8,166)

Net change in derivatives 592 592

Employee benefit plan adjustments 2,049 2,049

Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (135) (135)

Dividends paid:
Common (428) (428)

Preferred (1,249) (1,249)

Issuance of preferred stock 1,008 1,008

Redemption of preferred stock (6,461) (100) (6,561)

Common stock issued under employee plans and
related tax effects 45,288 371 371

Common stock repurchased (231,744) (3,220) (3,220)

Other 37 37

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 13,352 10,591,808 $ 155,293 $ 72,497 $ (8,457) $ — $ 232,685

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Operating activities    
Net income $ 11,431 $ 4,188 $ 1,446
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:    

Provision for credit losses 3,556 8,169 13,410
Goodwill impairment — — 3,184
Gains on sales of debt securities (1,271) (1,662) (3,374)
Fair value adjustments on structured liabilities 649 5,107 (3,320)
Depreciation and premises improvements amortization 1,597 1,774 1,976
Amortization of intangibles 1,086 1,264 1,509
Net amortization of premium/discount on debt securities 1,577 2,580 2,046
Deferred income taxes 3,262 (2,735) (1,949)
Originations and purchases of loans held-for-sale (65,688) (59,540) (118,168)
Proceeds from sales, securitizations and paydowns of loans held-for-sale 77,707 54,817 141,862
Net (increase) decrease in trading and derivative instruments 33,870 (47,606) 25,481
Net (increase) decrease in other assets 35,154 (11,424) 21,285
Net increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities (12,919) 24,061 (18,124)
Other operating activities, net 2,806 4,951 (2,816)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 92,817 (16,056) 64,448
Investing activities    
Net decrease in time deposits placed and other short-term investments 7,154 7,310 105
Net (increase) decrease in federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 29,596 (8,741) (1,567)
Proceeds from sales of debt securities carried at fair value 119,013 74,068 120,125
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities of debt securities carried at fair value 85,554 71,509 56,732
Purchases of debt securities carried at fair value (175,983) (164,491) (99,536)
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities of held-to-maturity debt securities 8,472 6,261 602
Purchases of held-to-maturity debt securities (14,388) (20,991) (35,552)
Proceeds from sales of loans and leases 12,331 1,837 3,124
Purchases of loans and leases (16,734) (9,178) (9,638)
Other changes in loans and leases, net (34,256) 2,557 2,864
Net sales (purchases) of premises and equipment (521) 5 (1,307)
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed properties 1,099 2,799 2,532
Proceeds from sales of investments 4,818 2,396 14,840
Other investing activities, net (1,097) (320) (895)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 25,058 (34,979) 52,429
Financing activities    
Net increase in deposits 14,010 72,220 22,611
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (95,153) 78,395 (30,495)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 16,009 (5,017) (24,264)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 45,658 22,200 26,001
Retirement of long-term debt (65,602) (124,389) (101,814)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and warrants 1,008 667 5,000
Redemption of preferred stock (6,461) — —
Common stock repurchased (3,220) — —
Cash dividends paid (1,677) (1,909) (1,738)
Excess tax benefits on share-based payments 12 13 42
Other financing activities, net (26) 236 3

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (95,442) 42,416 (104,654)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1,863) (731) (548)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 20,570 (9,350) 11,675
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 110,752 120,102 108,427

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 131,322 $ 110,752 $ 120,102
Supplemental cash flow disclosures    
Interest paid $ 12,912 $ 18,268 $ 25,207
Income taxes paid 1,559 1,372 1,653
Income taxes refunded (244) (338) (781)

During 2011, the Corporation entered into an agreement with Assured Guaranty Ltd. and subsidiaries which resulted in non-cash increases to loans of $2.2 billion, other assets of $82 million and long-
term debt of $2.3 billion.
During 2011, the Corporation exchanged preferred stock, with a carrying value of $1.1 billion, for 92 million common shares valued at $522 million and senior notes valued at $360 million.
During 2011, the Corporation exchanged trust preferred securities for 308 million common shares valued at $1.7 billion and senior notes valued at $2.0 billion. The trust preferred securities, and 
underlying junior subordinated notes and stock purchase agreements, with a carrying value of $5.2 billion, were immediately canceled.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income
(Dollars in millions, except per share information) 2014 2013 2012
Interest income   

Loans and leases $ 34,307 $ 36,470 $ 38,880
Debt securities 8,021 9,749 8,908
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 1,039 1,229 1,502
Trading account assets 4,561 4,706 5,094
Other interest income 2,958 2,866 3,016

Total interest income 50,886 55,020 57,400

Interest expense    
Deposits 1,080 1,396 1,990
Short-term borrowings 2,578 2,923 3,572
Trading account liabilities 1,576 1,638 1,763
Long-term debt 5,700 6,798 9,419

Total interest expense 10,934 12,755 16,744
Net interest income 39,952 42,265 40,656

Noninterest income    
Card income 5,944 5,826 6,121
Service charges 7,443 7,390 7,600
Investment and brokerage services 13,284 12,282 11,393
Investment banking income 6,065 6,126 5,299
Equity investment income 1,130 2,901 2,070
Trading account profits 6,309 7,056 5,870
Mortgage banking income 1,563 3,874 4,750
Gains on sales of debt securities 1,354 1,271 1,662
Other income (loss) 1,203 (49) (2,087)

Total noninterest income 44,295 46,677 42,678
Total revenue, net of interest expense 84,247 88,942 83,334

Provision for credit losses 2,275 3,556 8,169

Noninterest expense   
Personnel 33,787 34,719 35,648
Occupancy 4,260 4,475 4,570
Equipment 2,125 2,146 2,269
Marketing 1,829 1,834 1,873
Professional fees 2,472 2,884 3,574
Amortization of intangibles 936 1,086 1,264
Data processing 3,144 3,170 2,961
Telecommunications 1,259 1,593 1,660
Other general operating 25,305 17,307 18,274

Total noninterest expense 75,117 69,214 72,093
Income before income taxes 6,855 16,172 3,072

Income tax expense (benefit) 2,022 4,741 (1,116)
Net income $ 4,833 $ 11,431 $ 4,188

Preferred stock dividends 1,044 1,349 1,428
Net income applicable to common shareholders $ 3,789 $ 10,082 $ 2,760

Per common share information    
Earnings $ 0.36 $ 0.94 $ 0.26
Diluted earnings 0.36 0.90 0.25
Dividends paid 0.12 0.04 0.04

Average common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 10,527,818 10,731,165 10,746,028
Average diluted common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 10,584,535 11,491,418 10,840,854

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 4,833 $ 11,431 $ 4,188
Other comprehensive income (loss), net-of-tax:

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities 4,621 (8,166) 1,802
Net change in derivatives 616 592 916
Employee benefit plan adjustments (943) 2,049 (65)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (157) (135) (13)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 4,137 (5,660) 2,640
Comprehensive income $ 8,970 $ 5,771 $ 6,828

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013
Assets  
Cash and due from banks $ 33,118 $ 36,852
Interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and non-U.S. central banks 105,471 94,470

Cash and cash equivalents 138,589 131,322
Time deposits placed and other short-term investments 7,510 11,540
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (includes $62,182 and $68,656 measured at fair 

value) 191,823 190,328

Trading account assets (includes $110,923 and $111,817 pledged as collateral) 191,785 200,993
Derivative assets 52,682 47,495
Debt securities:   

Carried at fair value (includes $46,976 and $52,283 pledged as collateral) 320,695 268,795
Held-to-maturity, at cost (fair value – $59,641 and $52,430; $17,124 and $20,869 pledged as collateral) 59,766 55,150

Total debt securities 380,461 323,945
Loans and leases (includes $8,681 and $10,042 measured at fair value and $52,959 and $71,579 pledged as collateral) 881,391 928,233
Allowance for loan and lease losses (14,419) (17,428)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 866,972 910,805
Premises and equipment, net 10,049 10,475
Mortgage servicing rights (includes $3,530 and $5,042 measured at fair value) 3,530 5,052
Goodwill 69,777 69,844
Intangible assets 4,612 5,574
Loans held-for-sale (includes $6,801 and $6,656 measured at fair value) 12,836 11,362
Customer and other receivables 61,845 59,448
Other assets (includes $13,873 and $18,055 measured at fair value) 112,063 124,090

Total assets $ 2,104,534 $2,102,273

Assets of consolidated variable interest entities included in total assets above (isolated to settle the liabilities of the variable interest entities)

Trading account assets $ 6,890 $ 8,412
Derivative assets 6 185
Loans and leases 95,187 109,118
Allowance for loan and lease losses (1,968) (2,674)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 93,219 106,444
Loans held-for-sale 1,822 1,384
All other assets 2,763 4,577

Total assets of consolidated variable interest entities $ 104,700 $ 121,002

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013
Liabilities   
Deposits in U.S. offices:   

Noninterest-bearing $ 392,790 $ 373,070
Interest-bearing (includes $1,469 and $1,899 measured at fair value) 660,161 667,714

Deposits in non-U.S. offices:  
Noninterest-bearing 7,542 8,255
Interest-bearing 58,443 70,232

Total deposits 1,118,936 1,119,271
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (includes $35,357 and $26,500 measured at fair 

value) 201,277 198,106

Trading account liabilities 74,192 83,469
Derivative liabilities 46,909 37,407
Short-term borrowings (includes $2,697 and $1,520 measured at fair value) 31,172 45,999
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (includes $12,055 and $11,233 measured at fair value and $528 and $484 of reserve for 

unfunded lending commitments) 145,438 135,662

Long-term debt (includes $36,404 and $47,035 measured at fair value) 243,139 249,674
Total liabilities 1,861,063 1,869,588

Commitments and contingencies (Note 6 – Securitizations and Other Variable Interest Entities, Note 7 – Representations and Warranties 
Obligations and Corporate Guarantees and Note 12 – Commitments and Contingencies)

Shareholders’ equity   
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized – 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 3,647,790 and 3,407,790 shares 19,309 13,352
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.01 par value; authorized – 12,800,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 

10,516,542,476 and 10,591,808,296 shares 153,458 155,293

Retained earnings 75,024 72,497
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (4,320) (8,457)

Total shareholders’ equity 243,471 232,685
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,104,534 $2,102,273

Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities included in total liabilities above   
Short-term borrowings (includes $0 and $77 of non-recourse borrowings) $ 1,032 $ 1,150
Long-term debt (includes $11,943 and $16,209 of non-recourse debt) 13,307 19,448
All other liabilities (includes $84 and $138 of non-recourse liabilities) 138 253

Total liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities $ 14,477 $ 20,851

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred
Stock

Common Stock and
Additional Paid-in

Capital Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands) Shares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 18,397 10,535,938 $ 156,621 $ 60,520 $ (5,437) $ 230,101
Net income    4,188 4,188
Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities     1,802 1,802
Net change in derivatives     916 916
Employee benefit plan adjustments     (65) (65)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments    (13) (13)
Dividends paid:     

Common  (437)  (437)
Preferred   (1,472)  (1,472)

Net issuance of preferred stock 667 667

Common stock issued in connection with exchanges of preferred stock
and trust preferred securities (296) 49,867 412 44 160

Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 192,459 1,109   1,109
Balance, December 31, 2012 18,768 10,778,264 158,142 62,843 (2,797) 236,956
Net income 11,431 11,431
Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities (8,166) (8,166)
Net change in derivatives 592 592
Employee benefit plan adjustments 2,049 2,049
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (135) (135)
Dividends paid:

Common (428) (428)
Preferred (1,249) (1,249)

Issuance of preferred stock 1,008 1,008
Redemption of preferred stock (6,461) (100) (6,561)
Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 45,288 371 371
Common stock repurchased (231,744) (3,220) (3,220)
Other 37 37
Balance, December 31, 2013 13,352 10,591,808 155,293 72,497 (8,457) 232,685
Net income 4,833 4,833

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities 4,621 4,621

Net change in derivatives 616 616

Employee benefit plan adjustments (943) (943)

Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (157) (157)

Dividends paid:
Common (1,262) (1,262)

Preferred (1,044) (1,044)

Issuance of preferred stock 5,957 5,957

Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 25,866 (160) (160)

Common stock repurchased (101,132) (1,675) (1,675)

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 19,309 10,516,542 $ 153,458 $ 75,024 $ (4,320) $ 243,471

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Operating activities  
Net income $ 4,833 $ 11,431 $ 4,188
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:  

Provision for credit losses 2,275 3,556 8,169
Gains on sales of debt securities (1,354) (1,271) (1,662)
Fair value adjustments on structured liabilities (407) 649 5,107
Depreciation and premises improvements amortization 1,586 1,597 1,774
Amortization of intangibles 936 1,086 1,264
Net amortization of premium/discount on debt securities 2,688 1,577 2,580
Deferred income taxes 726 3,262 (2,735)

Loans held-for-sale:
Originations and purchases (40,113) (65,688) (59,540)
Proceeds from sales and paydowns of loans originally classified as held-for-sale 38,528 77,707 54,817

Net change in:
Trading and derivative instruments 6,621 33,870 (47,606)
Other assets 2,380 35,154 (11,424)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 9,702 (12,919) 24,061

Other operating activities, net (1,662) 2,806 4,951
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 26,739 92,817 (16,056)

Investing activities  
Net change in:

Time deposits placed and other short-term investments 4,030 7,154 7,310
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (1,495) 29,596 (8,741)

Debt securities carried at fair value:
Proceeds from sales 159,071 119,013 74,068
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities 79,704 85,554 71,509
Purchases (280,571) (175,983) (164,491)

Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities 7,889 8,472 6,261
Purchases (13,274) (14,388) (20,991)

Loans and leases:
Proceeds from sales 28,765 12,331 1,837
Purchases (10,609) (16,734) (9,178)
Other changes in loans and leases, net 22,635 (34,256) 2,557

Net sales (purchases) of premises and equipment (1,160) (521) 5
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed properties 855 1,099 2,799
Proceeds from sales of investments 1,577 4,818 2,396
Other investing activities, net (1,621) (1,097) (320)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (4,204) 25,058 (34,979)
Financing activities  
Net change in:

Deposits (335) 14,010 72,220
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase 3,171 (95,153) 78,395
Short-term borrowings (14,827) 16,009 (5,017)

Long-term debt:
Proceeds from issuance 51,573 45,658 22,200
Retirement of long-term debt (53,749) (65,602) (124,389)

Preferred stock:
Proceeds from issuance 5,957 1,008 667
Redemption — (6,461) —

Common stock repurchased (1,675) (3,220) —
Cash dividends paid (2,306) (1,677) (1,909)
Excess tax benefits on share-based payments 34 12 13
Other financing activities, net (44) (26) 236

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (12,201) (95,442) 42,416
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (3,067) (1,863) (731)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,267 20,570 (9,350)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 131,322 110,752 120,102

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 138,589 $ 131,322 $ 110,752
Supplemental cash flow disclosures  
Interest paid $ 11,082 $ 12,912 $ 18,268
Income taxes paid 2,558 1,559 1,372
Income taxes refunded (144) (244) (338)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



130     Bank of America 2015

Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income
(Dollars in millions, except per share information) 2015 2014 2013
Interest income    

Loans and leases $ 32,070 $ 34,307 $ 36,470
Debt securities 9,319 8,021 9,749
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell 988 1,039 1,229
Trading account assets 4,397 4,561 4,706
Other interest income 3,026 2,958 2,866

Total interest income 49,800 50,886 55,020

Interest expense    
Deposits 861 1,080 1,396
Short-term borrowings 2,387 2,578 2,923
Trading account liabilities 1,343 1,576 1,638
Long-term debt 5,958 5,700 6,798

Total interest expense 10,549 10,934 12,755
Net interest income 39,251 39,952 42,265

Noninterest income    
Card income 5,959 5,944 5,826
Service charges 7,381 7,443 7,390
Investment and brokerage services 13,337 13,284 12,282
Investment banking income 5,572 6,065 6,126
Equity investment income 261 1,130 2,901
Trading account profits 6,473 6,309 7,056
Mortgage banking income 2,364 1,563 3,874
Gains on sales of debt securities 1,091 1,354 1,271
Other income (loss) 818 1,203 (49)

Total noninterest income 43,256 44,295 46,677
Total revenue, net of interest expense 82,507 84,247 88,942

Provision for credit losses 3,161 2,275 3,556

Noninterest expense   
Personnel 32,868 33,787 34,719
Occupancy 4,093 4,260 4,475
Equipment 2,039 2,125 2,146
Marketing 1,811 1,829 1,834
Professional fees 2,264 2,472 2,884
Amortization of intangibles 834 936 1,086
Data processing 3,115 3,144 3,170
Telecommunications 823 1,259 1,593
Other general operating 9,345 25,305 17,307

Total noninterest expense 57,192 75,117 69,214
Income before income taxes 22,154 6,855 16,172

Income tax expense 6,266 2,022 4,741
Net income $ 15,888 $ 4,833 $ 11,431

Preferred stock dividends 1,483 1,044 1,349
Net income applicable to common shareholders $ 14,405 $ 3,789 $ 10,082

Per common share information    
Earnings $ 1.38 $ 0.36 $ 0.94
Diluted earnings 1.31 0.36 0.90
Dividends paid 0.20 0.12 0.04

Average common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 10,462,282 10,527,818 10,731,165
Average diluted common shares issued and outstanding (in thousands) 11,213,992 10,584,535 11,491,418

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Net income $ 15,888 $ 4,833 $ 11,431
Other comprehensive income (loss), net-of-tax:

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities (1,598) 4,621 (8,166)
Net change in debit valuation adjustments 615 — —
Net change in derivatives 584 616 592
Employee benefit plan adjustments 394 (943) 2,049
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (123) (157) (135)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (128) 4,137 (5,660)
Comprehensive income $ 15,760 $ 8,970 $ 5,771

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

 December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2015 2014
Assets   
Cash and due from banks $ 31,265 $ 33,118
Interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve, non-U.S. central banks and other banks 128,088 105,471

Cash and cash equivalents 159,353 138,589
Time deposits placed and other short-term investments 7,744 7,510
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (includes $55,143 and $62,182 measured at fair 

value) 192,482 191,823

Trading account assets (includes $105,135 and $110,620 pledged as collateral) 176,527 191,785
Derivative assets 49,990 52,682
Debt securities:   

Carried at fair value (includes $29,810 and $32,741 pledged as collateral) 322,380 320,695
Held-to-maturity, at cost (fair value – $84,046 and $59,641; $9,074 and $15,432 pledged as collateral) 84,625 59,766

Total debt securities 407,005 380,461
Loans and leases (includes $6,938 and $8,681 measured at fair value and $37,767 and $52,959 pledged as collateral) 903,001 881,391
Allowance for loan and lease losses (12,234) (14,419)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 890,767 866,972
Premises and equipment, net 9,485 10,049
Mortgage servicing rights (includes $3,087 and $3,530 measured at fair value) 3,087 3,530
Goodwill 69,761 69,777
Intangible assets 3,768 4,612
Loans held-for-sale (includes $4,818 and $6,801 measured at fair value) 7,453 12,836
Customer and other receivables 58,312 61,845
Other assets (includes $14,320 and $13,873 measured at fair value) 108,582 112,063

Total assets $ 2,144,316 $2,104,534

Assets of consolidated variable interest entities included in total assets above (isolated to settle the liabilities of the variable interest entities)

Trading account assets $ 6,344 $ 6,890
Loans and leases 72,946 95,187
Allowance for loan and lease losses (1,320) (1,968)

Loans and leases, net of allowance 71,626 93,219
Loans held-for-sale 284 1,822
All other assets 1,530 2,769

Total assets of consolidated variable interest entities $ 79,784 $ 104,700

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

 December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2015 2014
Liabilities   
Deposits in U.S. offices:   

Noninterest-bearing $ 422,237 $ 393,102
Interest-bearing (includes $1,116 and $1,469 measured at fair value) 703,761 660,161

Deposits in non-U.S. offices:  
Noninterest-bearing 9,916 7,230
Interest-bearing 61,345 58,443

Total deposits 1,197,259 1,118,936
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (includes $24,574 and $35,357 measured at fair 

value) 174,291 201,277

Trading account liabilities 66,963 74,192
Derivative liabilities 38,450 46,909
Short-term borrowings (includes $1,325 and $2,697 measured at fair value) 28,098 31,172
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (includes $13,899 and $12,055 measured at fair value and $646 and $528 of reserve for 

unfunded lending commitments) 146,286 145,438

Long-term debt (includes $30,097 and $36,404 measured at fair value) 236,764 243,139
Total liabilities 1,888,111 1,861,063

Commitments and contingencies (Note 6 – Securitizations and Other Variable Interest Entities, Note 7 – Representations and Warranties 
Obligations and Corporate Guarantees and Note 12 – Commitments and Contingencies)

Shareholders’ equity   
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized – 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 3,767,790 and 3,647,790 shares 22,273 19,309
Common stock and additional paid-in capital, $0.01 par value; authorized – 12,800,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding – 

10,380,265,063 and 10,516,542,476 shares 151,042 153,458

Retained earnings 88,564 75,024
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (5,674) (4,320)

Total shareholders’ equity 256,205 243,471
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,144,316 $2,104,534

Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities included in total liabilities above   
Short-term borrowings $ 681 $ 1,032
Long-term debt (includes $11,304 and $11,943 of non-recourse debt) 14,073 13,307
All other liabilities (includes $20 and $84 of non-recourse liabilities) 21 138

Total liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities $ 14,775 $ 14,477

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred
Stock

Common Stock and
Additional Paid-in

Capital Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands) Shares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 18,768 10,778,264 $ 158,142 $ 62,843 $ (2,797) $ 236,956
Net income    11,431 11,431
Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities     (8,166) (8,166)
Net change in derivatives     592 592
Employee benefit plan adjustments     2,049 2,049
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments    (135) (135)
Dividends paid:     

Common  (428)  (428)
Preferred   (1,249)  (1,249)

Issuance of preferred stock 1,008 1,008
Redemption of preferred stock (6,461) (100) (6,561)
Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 45,288 371   371
Common stock repurchased (231,744) (3,220) (3,220)
Other 37    37
Balance, December 31, 2013 13,352 10,591,808 155,293 72,497 (8,457) 232,685
Net income 4,833 4,833
Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities 4,621 4,621
Net change in derivatives 616 616
Employee benefit plan adjustments (943) (943)
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (157) (157)
Dividends paid:

Common (1,262) (1,262)
Preferred (1,044) (1,044)

Issuance of preferred stock 5,957 5,957
Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 25,866 (160) (160)
Common stock repurchased (101,132) (1,675) (1,675)
Balance, December 31, 2014 19,309 10,516,542 153,458 75,024 (4,320) 243,471

Cumulative adjustment for accounting change related to debit
valuation adjustments 1,226 (1,226) —

Net income 15,888 15,888

Net change in available-for-sale debt and marketable equity securities (1,598) (1,598)

Net change in debit valuation adjustments 615 615

Net change in derivatives 584 584

Employee benefit plan adjustments 394 394

Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments (123) (123)

Dividends paid:
Common (2,091) (2,091)

Preferred (1,483) (1,483)

Issuance of preferred stock 2,964 2,964

Common stock issued under employee plans and related tax effects 4,054 (42) (42)

Common stock repurchased (140,331) (2,374) (2,374)

Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 22,273 10,380,265 $ 151,042 $ 88,564 $ (5,674) $ 256,205

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Dollars in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Operating activities  
Net income $ 15,888 $ 4,833 $ 11,431
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:  

Provision for credit losses 3,161 2,275 3,556
Gains on sales of debt securities (1,091) (1,354) (1,271)
Fair value adjustments on structured liabilities 633 (407) 649
Depreciation and premises improvements amortization 1,555 1,586 1,597
Amortization of intangibles 834 936 1,086
Net amortization of premium/discount on debt securities 2,472 2,688 1,577
Deferred income taxes 3,108 726 3,262

Loans held-for-sale:
Originations and purchases (38,675) (40,113) (65,688)
Proceeds from sales and paydowns of loans originally classified as held-for-sale 36,204 38,528 77,707

Net change in:
Trading and derivative instruments 3,292 6,621 33,870
Other assets 2,458 5,828 35,154
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 730 9,702 (12,919)

Other operating activities, net (2,839) (1,714) 2,806
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,730 30,135 92,817

Investing activities  
Net change in:

Time deposits placed and other short-term investments 50 4,030 7,154
Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell (659) (1,495) 29,596

Debt securities carried at fair value:
Proceeds from sales 145,079 126,399 103,743
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities 84,988 79,704 85,554
Purchases (219,412) (247,902) (160,744)

Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Proceeds from paydowns and maturities 12,872 7,889 8,472
Purchases (36,575) (13,274) (14,388)

Loans and leases:
Proceeds from sales 22,316 28,765 12,331
Purchases (12,629) (10,609) (16,734)
Other changes in loans and leases, net (52,626) 19,239 (34,256)

Proceeds from sales of equity investments 333 1,577 4,818
Other investing activities, net 1,309 (1,923) (488)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (54,954) (7,600) 25,058
Financing activities  
Net change in:

Deposits 78,347 (335) 14,010
Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase (26,986) 3,171 (95,153)
Short-term borrowings (3,074) (14,827) 16,009

Long-term debt:
Proceeds from issuance 43,670 51,573 45,658
Retirement of long-term debt (40,365) (53,749) (65,602)

Preferred stock:
Proceeds from issuance 2,964 5,957 1,008
Redemption — — (6,461)

Common stock repurchased (2,374) (1,675) (3,220)
Cash dividends paid (3,574) (2,306) (1,677)
Excess tax benefits on share-based payments 16 34 12
Other financing activities, net (39) (44) (26)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 48,585 (12,201) (95,442)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (597) (3,067) (1,863)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 20,764 7,267 20,570
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 138,589 131,322 110,752

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 159,353 $ 138,589 $ 131,322
Supplemental cash flow disclosures  
Interest paid $ 10,623 $ 11,082 $ 12,912
Income taxes paid 2,326 2,558 1,559
Income taxes refunded (151) (144) (244)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Tab 9

Sale Date Issuer State Coupon 
Type

Issue Description Par Amount 
($MM)

Main Use of Proceeds Moody's S&P Fitch Liability

07/15/14 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA
Variable and 

Fixed Revenue Bonds 1401.6 Bridges Aa3 AA AA- 31.00%
11/13/14 New Jersey Trans Trust Fund Au NJ Fixed Transportation Program Bonds 1061.6 Mass Transportation A2 A- A- 58.00%
03/09/16 Empire State Development Corp NY Fixed State PIT Revenue Bonds 1021.6 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets NR AAA AA+ 42.00%
05/21/14 Missouri Highway & Transport Com MO Fixed 1st & 2nd Lien Ref St Road Bonds 901.0 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Aaa AAA AAA 50.00%
04/15/15 Port Authority of NY & NJ NY Fixed Consolidated Bonds 650.0 Mass Transportation Aa3 AA- AA- 50.02%
09/23/16 Central Florida Expressway Au FL Fixed Sr Lien Refunding Revenue Bonds 631.3 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets A2 A A 35.00%
05/11/16 Alameda Corridor Transport Auth CA Fixed Subor & 2nd Lien Rev Ref Bonds 591.1 Mass Transportation Baa2 BBB+ BB+ 50.00%
05/20/16 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY Fixed Dedicated Tax Fd & Ref Bonds 588.3 Mass Transportation NR AA AA 37.35%
11/17/16 Los Angeles Co Metro Trans Auth CA Fixed Senior Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 522.1 Mass Transportation Aa1 AAA NR 45.00%

12/09/14 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA
Variable and 

Fixed Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds 511.4 Bridges Aa3 AA AA- 30.00%
07/26/16 Indiana Finance Authority IN Fixed Highway Revenue Refunding Bonds 465.0 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Aa1 AA+ AA+ 35.00%
11/14/14 North Texas Tollway Auth (NTTA) TX Fixed 1st Tier, 2nd Tier System Rev Ref Bonds 456.8 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets A2 A- NR 45.00%
07/09/15 Illinois State Toll Highway Auth IL Fixed Toll Highway Senior Revenue Bonds 400.0 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Aa3 AA- AA- 25.00%
12/04/14 Massachusetts MA Fixed Federal Highway GANs 347.3 Bridges Aa1 AAA NR 52.00%
12/10/15 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY Fixed Transportation Revenue Ref Bonds 330.4 Mass Transportation A1 AA- A 37.35%
11/09/16 Chesapeake Bay Bridge & Tunn Dt VA Fixed 1st Tier Gen Resolution Rev Bonds 321.5 Tunnels A2 AA NR 70.00%
03/12/15 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY Fixed Transportation Revenue Bonds 275.1 Mass Transportation A2 AA- A 35.30%
05/21/15 North Carolina NC Fixed Grant Antic Rev Vehicle Bonds 264.9 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets A2 AA A+ 55.00%
01/30/14 Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Auth NY Fixed General Revenue Bonds 250.0 Bridges Aa3 AA- AA- 35.20%
05/25/16 Washington Metro Area Transit Au DC Fixed Gross Revenue Transit Bonds 220.0 Mass Transportation A2 AA- NR 50.00%
12/02/15 Delaware Transportation Auth DE Fixed Revenue Bonds 212.5 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets A1 AA- NR 64.00%
10/22/15 Harris Co-Texas TX Fixed Unltd Tax Road Refunding Bonds 202.7 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Aaa AAA NR 45.00%
01/12/16 Delaware Transportation Auth DE Fixed Transportation Sys Sr Rev Bonds 181.5 Mass Transportation Aa2 AA+ NR 64.00%
05/24/16 NE Texas Regional Mobility Au TX Fixed Senior Lien/ Sub Lien Revenue Bonds 181.4 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Baa2 BBB NR 50.00%
03/04/15 Maine Turnpike Authority ME Fixed Turnpike Revenue Refunding Bonds 144.9 Toll Roads, Highways & Streets Aa3 AA- AA- 55.00%
01/28/16 Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Au RI Fixed Motor Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds 117.6 Bridges NR A+ A 65.00%
10/17/14 Lee Co-Florida FL Fixed Transportation Facs Ref Rev Bonds 106.6 Mass Transportation A2 AA NR 50.00%
01/29/14 Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Auth NY Fixed General Revenue BANs 100.0 Bridges NR NR A+ 35.20%
12/09/14 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA Fixed Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds 80.3 Bridges Aa3 AA AA- 30.00%
05/15/14 Camino Real Reg Mobility Auth TX Fixed Sr Lien Vehicle Reg Fee Rev Bonds 68.5 Mass Transportation NR AA- NR 50.00%

Select BofAML Senior Managed Tax-Exempt Transportation Revenue Experience Over $100MM, 2014 - 2017 YTD
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Sale Date Issuer State Par Amount ($MM) Series Issue Description
1/25/2017 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 300.000 2017 Series F-1 Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds
1/25/2017 North Carolina Turnpike Authority NC 17.597 Series 2016 C Toll Revenue Bonds
1/25/2017 North Carolina Turnpike Authority NC 119.455 Series 2016 A Toll Revenue Bonds
1/10/2017 Washington WA 49.230 Series 17 E & R-17 D Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax & Ref Bond

11/30/2016 Grand Parkway Transport Corp TX 83.775 Series 2016 A Sys Sub Tier Toll Rev Ref Bonds
11/17/2016 Los Angeles Co Metro Trans Auth CA 522.120 Series 2016-A Senior Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
11/16/2016 Collin Co MUD #1 TX 14.500 Series 2016 Unlimited Tax Road Bonds
11/15/2016 Massachusetts MA 200.000 2016 Series B Commonwealth Trans Fd Rev Bonds

11/9/2016 Chesapeake Bay Bridge & Tunn Dt VA 321.515 Series 2016 1st Tier Gen Resolution Rev Bonds
11/3/2016 Maine Municipal Bond Bank ME 44.105 Series 2016 A Grant Antic Revenue Bonds

10/26/2016 Maryland Dept of Transportation MD 385.000 Series 2016 Consolidated Transportation Bonds
10/26/2016 New Jersey Trans Trust Fund Au NJ 1300.000 2016 Subseries A-2 Revenue Notes
10/26/2016 New Jersey Trans Trust Fund Au NJ 1441.425 2016 Subseries A-1 Revenue Notes

9/23/2016 Central Florida Expressway Au FL 631.330 Series 2016 B Sr Lien Refunding Revenue Bonds
7/26/2016 Indiana Finance Authority IN 464.975 Series 2016 C Highway Revenue Refunding Bonds
7/14/2016 Michigan MI 607.110 Series 2016 Grant Anticipation Ref Bonds
6/28/2016 Washington WA 271.585 Series R-2017 B Motor Vehicle Fuel GO Ref Bonds
6/16/2016 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 350.000 Ser 16 A Subser A 1 BANs

6/2/2016 Rhode Island Commerce Corp RI 230.280 Series 2016 A Grant Anticipation Ref Bonds
5/25/2016 Washington Metro Area Transit Au DC 220.000 Series 2016 A Gross Revenue Transit Bonds
5/24/2016 NE Texas Regional Mobility Au (NETRMA) TX 56.615 Series 2016 B Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds
5/24/2016 NE Texas Regional Mobility Au (NETRMA) TX 124.735 Series 2016 A Senior Lien Revenue Bonds
5/20/2016 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 588.305 Series 2016 B 1 & 2 Dedicated Tax Fd & Ref Bonds
5/11/2016 Alameda Corridor Transport Auth CA 591.140 Series 2016 A & B Subor & 2nd Lien Rev Ref Bonds

5/4/2016 Virginia Transportation Board VA 273.740 Series 2016 Revenue Bonds
4/19/2016 Texas Transportation Commission TX 615.000 Series 2016 GO Highway Improvement Bonds
4/13/2016 Manatee Co-Florida FL 36.000 Series 2016 Revenue Improvement Notes
3/29/2016 Central Florida Expressway Au FL 151.695 Series 2016 A Sr Ln Revenue Refunding Bonds
3/22/2016 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 200.000 Series 2016 A-2 Transportation Revenue BANs
3/22/2016 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 500.000 Series 2016 A-1 Transportation Revenue BANs
3/21/2016 Florida Dept of Transportation FL 113.350 Series 2016 B Turnpike Revenue Refunding Bonds
3/21/2016 Rockwall Co-Texas TX 14.010 Series 2016 Unlmited Tax Road Bonds
3/16/2016 Generation Park Management Dt TX 9.515 Series 2016 A Unlimited Tax Road Bonds

3/9/2016 Alaska AK 134.790 Series 2016 A General Obligation Bonds
3/9/2016 Empire State Development Corp NY 1021.609 Series 2016 A State PIT Revenue Bonds
3/2/2016 No Indiana Commuter Trans Dt IN 89.100 Series 2016 Limited Obligation Revenue Bonds

2/24/2016 Colorado High Performance Trans Ent CO 23.630 Series 2014 Toll Revenue Notes
1/28/2016 Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Au RI 117.590 Series 2016 A Motor Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds

BofAML Senior Managed Transportation Deals, 2014 - 2017 YTD



Tab 9

Sale Date Issuer State Par Amount ($MM) Series Issue Description
BofAML Senior Managed Transportation Deals, 2014 - 2017 YTD

1/19/2016 Florida Dept of Transportation FL 173.385 Series 2016 A Turnpike Revenue Refunding Bonds
1/12/2016 Delaware Transportation Auth DE 181.475 Series 2016 Transportation Sys Sr Rev Bonds

12/10/2015 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 330.430 Series 2015 F Transportation Revenue Ref Bonds
12/2/2015 Delaware Transportation Auth DE 212.535 Series of 2015 Revenue Bonds
12/2/2015 Maryland Dept of Transportation MD 300.000 Ser 2015 Third Issue Consolidated Transportation Bonds
12/2/2015 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 628.000 Series 2015 B-1a-i Transportation Revenue BANs

11/17/2015 Wisconsin WI 225.000 2015 Series A Trasportation Revenue Bonds
11/6/2015 Massachusetts MA 500.000 2015 Series A Transportation Fund Rev Bonds

10/26/2015 Fort Bend Co MUD #134C TX 15.500 Series 2015 Unlimited Tax Road Bonds
10/22/2015 Harris Co-Texas TX 202.680 Series 2015 A Unltd Tax Road Refunding Bonds
10/22/2015 New Jersey Turnpike Authority NJ 750.000 Series 2015 E Turnpike Revenue Bonds

10/7/2015 Brevard Co-Florida FL 13.545 Series 2015 Consti Fuel Tax Ref RevBonds
10/6/2015 Maine Municipal Bond Bank ME 54.680 Series 2015 A Transport Infras Rev Ref Bonds
10/5/2015 Florida Dept of Transportation FL 195.875 Series 2015 B Turnpike Revenue Ref Bonds
9/30/2015 Washington WA 188.020 Series 2016 B Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax GO Bonds
9/14/2015 Portland City-Oregon OR 18.500 Non-Revolving Credit Facility

9/9/2015 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 500.000 Series 2015 A 1-8 Dedicated Tax Fund BANs
8/5/2015 Minnesota MN 310.000 Series 2015 B GO State Trunk Highway Bonds
7/9/2015 Illinois State Toll Highway Auth IL 400.000 2015 Series A Toll Highway Senior Revenue Bonds

6/30/2015 Texas Transportation Commission TX 781.080 Series 2015 State Hwy Fund 1st Tier Ref Bonds
6/4/2015 Charlotte City-North Carolina NC 56.470 Series 2015 B Ref Certificates of Participation
6/3/2015 Maryland Dept of Transportation MD 259.715 Series 2015 Consolidated Transport Ref Bonds

5/27/2015 Harris Co MUD #433 TX 10.155 Series 2015 A Unlimited Tax Road Bonds
5/21/2015 North Carolina NC 264.930 Series 2015 Grant Antic Rev Vehicle Bonds
4/28/2015 Portland City-Oregon OR 20.000 Series 2015 Non-Revolv Line of Credit Fac
4/15/2015 Port Authority of NY & NJ NY 160.000 190th Series Consolidated Bonds
4/15/2015 Port Authority of NY & NJ NY 490.000 189th Series Consolidated Bonds
3/12/2015 Metropolitan Transport Auth (MTA) NY 275.055 Series 2015 B Transportation Revenue Bonds
3/10/2015 Alaska AK 155.215 Series 2015 A General Obligation BANs

3/4/2015 Maine Turnpike Authority ME 144.875 Series 2015 Turnpike Revenue Refunding Bonds
2/10/2015 Washington WA 393.385 Series R-2015 F G H Various Purpose & GO Ref Bonds
1/21/2015 Washington WA 199.920 Series 2015 C Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax GO Bonds

12/19/2014 Colorado High Performance Trans Ent CO 25.000 Series 2014 Toll Revenue Notes
12/19/2014 Martin Co-Florida FL 23.135 Series 2014 Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Note

12/9/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 25.000 2014 Series S-5 Subordinate Toll Bridge Rev Bonds
12/9/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 80.335 2014 Series F-2 Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds
12/9/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 143.695 2014 Series G & H Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds
12/9/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 275.000 2014 Series S-6 Subordinate Toll Bridge Rev Bonds
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Sale Date Issuer State Par Amount ($MM) Series Issue Description
BofAML Senior Managed Transportation Deals, 2014 - 2017 YTD

12/9/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 287.405 2014 Series D & E Toll Bridge Revenue Bonds
12/4/2014 Massachusetts MA 347.310 2014 Series A Federal Highway GANs
12/3/2014 Texas Transportation Commission TX 250.000 Series 2014 B GO Mobility Fund Bonds
12/3/2014 Texas Transportation Commission TX 1580.160 Series 2014 A GO Mobility Fund & Ref Bonds

11/14/2014 Maine Municipal Bond Bank ME 44.810 Series 2014 A Grant Antcipation Bonds
11/14/2014 North Texas Tollway Auth (NTTA) TX 146.420 Series 2014 B 2nd Tier System Rev Ref Bonds
11/14/2014 North Texas Tollway Auth (NTTA) TX 310.415 Series 2014 A 1st Tier System Rev Ref Bonds
11/13/2014 California CA 630.000 Various Purpose GO Bonds
11/13/2014 New Jersey Trans Trust Fund Au NJ 297.500 2014 Series BB1&2 Transportation Program Notes
11/13/2014 New Jersey Trans Trust Fund Au NJ 764.055 2014 Series AA Transportation Program Bonds
10/17/2014 Lee Co-Florida FL 106.570 Series 2014 Transportation Facs Ref Rev Bonds

10/1/2014 Washington Metro Area Transit Au DC 200.000 Series 2014 A Grant Antic Sub Transit Rev Note
8/15/2014 Raleigh City-North Carolina NC 21.370 Series 2014 B Limited Oblig Refunding Bonds
8/12/2014 Minnesota MN 123.315 Series 2014 E GO State Trunk Highway Ref Bonds
8/12/2014 Minnesota MN 288.000 Series 2014 B GO State Trunk Highway Bonds

8/1/2014 Los Angeles Co Metro Trans Auth CA 61.750 Series 2008 A-2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
7/28/2014 Los Angeles Co Metro Trans Auth CA 61.675 Series 2008 A-1 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
7/24/2014 Maine Turnpike Authority ME 67.270 Series 2014 Special Oblig & Turnpike Bonds
7/24/2014 New Jersey Transit Corporation NJ 101.895 Series 2014 B GANs
7/24/2014 New Jersey Transit Corporation NJ 381.790 Series 2014 A GANs
7/15/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 200.000 2014 Series F-1 Revenue Bonds
7/15/2014 Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) CA 1201.635 2014 Series A - C Revenue Bonds
6/26/2014 Northern Virginia Transport Auth VA 74.642 Series 2014 BANs
6/19/2014 Texas Transportation Commission TX 973.775 Series 2014 GO Mobility Fund Refunding Bonds
6/11/2014 Los Angeles Co Metro Trans Auth CA 61.180 Series 2014 A Sales Tax Rev Ref Senior Bonds

6/5/2014 Metro Atlanta Rapid Transit Auth GA 286.700 Series 2014 A Sales Tax Revenue Ref Bonds
5/29/2014 Ohio OH 249.005 Series R GO Highway Capital Imp Bonds
5/21/2014 Missouri Highway & Transport Com MO 900.990 Series A & B 2014 1st & 2nd Lien Ref St Road Bonds
5/15/2014 Camino Real Reg Mobility Auth TX 68.485 Series 2014 Sr Lien Vehicle Reg Fee Rev Bonds
5/13/2014 New Jersey Turnpike Authority NJ 1000.000 Series 2014 A Turnpike Revenue Bonds
4/10/2014 Illinois IL 250.000 Series of April 2014 General Obligation Bonds
3/28/2014 Washington Metro Area Transit Au DC 25.000 Promissory Note
2/12/2014 Grand Parkway Transport Corp TX 83.550 Series 2014 B Sub Tier Toll Revenue Ref Bonds
2/12/2014 Grand Parkway Transport Corp TX 107.180 Series 2014 C Sub Tier Toll Revenue Ref Bonds
1/30/2014 Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Auth NY 250.000 Series 2014 A General Revenue Bonds
1/29/2014 Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Auth NY 100.000 Series 2014 A General Revenue BANs
1/15/2014 Florida Dept of Transportation FL 267.405 Series 2013 C Turnpike Revenue Bonds









BofAML  IS  NOT  YOUR  MUNICIPAL  ADVISOR  OR  FIDUCIARY.  Bank  of  America  Merrill  Lynch  (“BofAML”)  is  providing  the 
information contained herein for discussion purposes only either as an underwriter or in anticipation of being engaged to serve 
as  an  underwriter.  By providing  the  information  contained  herein  pursuant  to  the  responses  to  requests  for  proposals  or 
qualifications  exemption provided under SEC Rule 15Ba1­1(d)(3)(iv) BofAML is not acting as your “municipal advisor” within the 
meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”), and does not owe a fiduciary duty to 
you pursuant to the Act with respect to the information and material contained in this communication. BofAML is either serving 
as an underwriter or is seeking to serve as an underwriter on a future transaction and not as a financial advisor or municipal 
advisor. The primary role of BofAML, as an underwriter, is to purchase securities with a view to distribution in an arm’s ­length 
commercial transaction between you and BofAML and BofAML has financial and other interests that differ from yours. BofAML 
is acting for its own interests. You should discuss any information and material contained in this communication with any and
all  of  your  own  internal  or external  municipal and/or  financial,  legal, accounting,  tax and  other advisors  and  experts,  as 
applicable, to the extent you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.

As set forth in Bank of America Corporation’s 2015 Resolution Plan submitted to the Federal Reserve and the Federal Deposit 
Insurance  Corporation  on  July  1,  2015,  Bank  of  America  Corporation  is  undertaking  certain  initiatives  to  enhance  its 
resolvability, through the realignment of certain of its subsidiaries and businesses. As part of these initiatives, Bank of America 
Corporation proposes to separate its U.S. institutional and retail broker­dealer businesses currently conducted by Merrill Lynch, 
Pierce, Fenner & Smith  Incorporated  (“MLPF&S”) into two legal entities.  Specifically,  it  is contemplated  that  retail  clients will 
remain with MLPF&S and institutional clients will be transitioned to a new registered broker­dealer, BofAML Securities, Inc. by 
the end of the second quarter of 2017. Bank of America Corporation expects BofAML Securities Inc. to continue to offer the 
same services MLPF&S currently provides to its institutional and municipal clients. We wish to inform you that to the extent 
certain of  the underwriting  services  that are  contemplated by  this  response will be performed on or after  the  time of  this 
transition, such underwriting services will be performed by either BofAML Securities, Inc. or Bank of America, N.A. when such
transition occurs. A copy of the Public Executive Summary of Bank of America Corporation’s Resolution Plan dated July 1, 2015 
may be found at the following website: https://www.federalreserve.gov/bankinforeg/resolution­plans/boa­1g­20150701.pdf

Table of Contents

Tab

Section 1, Part C.........................................................................................................................................1

Section 3, Parts  F through J.......................................................................................................................2



Confidential Notice to Recipient
“Bank of America Merrill Lynch” is the marketing name for the global banking and global markets businesses of Bank of America
Corporation. Lending, derivatives, and other commercial banking activities are performed globally by banking affiliates of Bank of
America Corporation, including Bank of America, N.A., member FDIC. Securities, strategic advisory, and other investment banking 
activities are performed globally by investment banking affiliates of Bank of America Corporation (“Investment Banking Affiliates”), 
including, in  the United  States, Merrill  Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith  Incorporated and Merrill  Lynch Professional Clearing Corp., 
which are both registered broker dealers and members of FINRA and SIPC, and, in other jurisdictions, by locally registered entities.

Investment products offered by Investment Banking Affiliates:   
Are Not FDIC  Insured * May  Lose Value * Are Not  Bank Guaranteed.

These materials have been prepared by one or more subsidiaries of Bank of America Corporation for the client or potential client to 
whom such materials are directly addressed and delivered (the “Company”) in connection with an actual or potential mandate or
engagement and may not be used or relied upon for any purpose other than as specifically contemplated by a written agreement 
with us.  These materials are based on information provided by or on behalf of  the Company and/or other potential  transaction
participants,  from public  sources or otherwise  reviewed by us.   We assume no  responsibility  for  independent  investigation or 
verification of such information (including, without limitation, data from third party suppliers) and have relied on such information 
being  complete and accurate in all material  respects.  To  the extent  such  information  includes estimates and  forecasts of  future 
financial  performance  prepared  by  or  reviewed  with  the  managements  of  the  Company  and/or  other  potential  transaction 
participants or obtained from public sources, we have assumed that such estimates and forecasts have been reasonably prepared 
on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of such managements (or, with respect to estimates and 
forecasts obtained  from public  sources,  represent  reasonable estimates).   No  representation or warranty, express or  implied,  is 
made  as  to  the accuracy  or  completeness  of  such  information and  nothing  contained  herein  is,  or  shall  be  relied  upon  as, a 
representation, whether as  to  the past,  the present or  the  future.   These materials were designed  for use by  specific persons
familiar with the business and affairs of the Company and are being furnished and should be considered only in connection with 
other information, oral or written, being provided by us in connection herewith.  These materials are not intended to provide the 
sole basis for evaluating, and should not be considered a recommendation with respect to, any transaction or other matter.  These 
materials do not constitute an offer or solicitation to sell or purchase any securities and are not a commitment by Bank of America 
Corporation or any of its affiliates to provide or arrange any financing for any transaction or to purchase any security in connection 
therewith.    These  materials  are  for  discussion  purposes  only  and  are  subject  to  our  review  and  assessment  from  a  legal , 
compliance, accounting policy and  risk perspective, as appropriate,  following our discussion with  the Company.   We assume no 
obligation  to update or otherwise  revise  these materials.   These materials have not been prepared with a  view  toward public 
disclosure under applicable  securities laws or otherwise, are  intended  for  the benefit and use of  the Company, and may not be 
reproduced, disseminated, quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent.  These materials may not 
reflect information known to other professionals  in other business areas of Bank of America Corporation and its affiliates.
Bank of America Corporation and its affiliates (collectively, the “BAC Group”) comprise a full service securities firm and commercial 
bank engaged  in securities,  commodities and derivatives trading,  foreign exchange and other brokerage activities, and principal 
investing  as  well  as  providing  investment,  corporate  and  private  banking,  asset and  investment  management,  financing  and 
strategic  advisory  services  and  other  commercial  services  and  products  to  a  wide  range  of  corporations,  governments  and 
individuals, domestically and offshore, from which conflicting interests or duties, or a perception thereof, may arise.  In the ordinary 
course of these activities, parts of the BAC Group at any time may invest on a principal basis or manage funds that invest, make or 
hold long or short positions, finance positions or trade or otherwise effect transactions, for their own accounts or the accounts of 
customers, in debt, equity or other securities or financial instruments (including derivatives, bank loans or other obligations) of the 
Company, potential counterparties or any other company that may be involved in a transaction.  Products and services tha t may be 
referenced in  the accompanying materials may be provided  through one or more affiliates of Bank of America Corporation.  We 
have adopted policies and guidelines designed  to preserve  the  independence of our  research analysts. The BAC Group prohibits 
employees from, directly or indirectly, offering a favorable research rating or specific price target, or offering to change a rating or 
price target  to a subject  company as  consideration or  inducement  for  the  receipt of business or  for  compensation and  the BAC 
Group prohibits research analysts from being directly compensated for involvement in investment banking transactions. The views 
expressed herein are the views solely of Global Corporate and Investment Banking, and no inference should be made that the views 
expressed represent the view of the firm’s research department. We are required to obtain, verify and record certain information 
that identifies  the Company, which information includes  the name and address of  the Company and other  information that will 
allow us to identify the Company in accordance, as applicable, with the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107 ­56 (signed into law 
October 26, 2001)) and such other laws, rules and regulations as applicable within and outside the United States.
We do not provide legal, compliance, tax or accounting advice.  Accordingly, any statements contained herein as to tax matters 
were neither written nor intended by us to be used and cannot be used by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties 
that may be  imposed on  such  taxpayer.  I f any person  uses or  refers  to any  such  tax   statement  in promoting, marketing or  
recommending a partnership or other entity, investment plan or arrangement  to any  taxpayer,  then  the  statement expressed 
herein is being delivered to support the promotion or marketing of the transaction or matter addressed and the recipient should 
seek advice based on its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.  Notwithstanding anything that may appear  
herein or in other materials to the contrary, the Company shall be permitted to disclose the tax treatment and tax structure of a 
transaction (including any material s, opinions or analyse s relating to such tax treatment or tax structure, but without disclosure 
of identifying information or, except to the extent relating to such tax  structure or tax treatment, any nonpublic commercial or 
financial  information) on and after  the earliest  to occur of  the date of  (i) public announcement of discussions  relating  to  such 
transaction, (ii) public announcement of such transaction or (iii) execution of a definitive agreement (with or without conditions) 
to enter into such transaction; provided, however, that if such transaction is not consummated for any reason, the provisions of 
this sentence shall cease to  apply.   Copyright 2017 Bank of America Corporation.







State of Illinois RFP 21 
Section 1. Part C. Offer to the State of Illinois 
V.16.1 

C.12. PACKET 4 – FORMS B

 Yes  No 

C.12.1 Illinois Procurement Gateway Registration # with expiration date  Yes  No 

C.12.2 Certifications Timely to this Solicitation  Yes  No 

C.12.3 Replacement Certification to IPG Certification #6 (supersedes response in 
IPG) 

 Yes  No 

C.12.4 Disclosure of Lobbyists for Bidder and parent entity(ies)  Yes  No 

C.12.5 Disclosure of current and pending contract  Yes  No 

C.12.6 Signature  Yes  No 

C.12.7 Taxpayer Identification Number  Yes  No 

C.13. PACKET 5 – REDACTED OFFER

 Yes  No 

C.14. PACKET 6 – BEP UTILIZATION PLAN

C.14.1 Does this solicitation contain a BEP goal?  Yes  No 

C.14.2 Minorities, Females, Persons with Disabilities Participation and 
Utilization Plan  

 Yes  No  N/A 

C.15. PACKET 7 – VSB UTILIZATION PLAN

C.15.1 Does this solicitation contain a VSB goal?   Yes  No 

C.15.2 Veteran Small Business Participation and Utilization Plan  Yes  No  N/A 

C.16. PREFERENCES

The Illinois Procurement Code provides various preferences to promote business opportunities in 
Illinois.   

Does Offeror make any claims for preferences?  If so, please mark the applicable preference(s) and 
include a listing of the items that qualify for the preference at the end of this Section and a description 
of why the preference applies.  Agency reserves the right to determine whether the preference 
indicated applies to Offeror. 

 Resident Bidder (30 ILCS 500/45-10). 

 Soybean Oil-Based Ink (30 ILCS 500/45-15). 

 Recycled Materials (30 ILCS 500/45-20). 

 Recycled Paper (30 ILCS 500/45-25). 

 Environmentally Preferable Supplies (30 ILCS 500/45-26). 

 Correctional Industries (30 ILCS 500/45-30). 

 Sheltered Workshops for the Severely Handicapped (30 ILCS 500/45-35). 

 Gas Mileage (30 ILCS 500/45-40). 

 Small Businesses (30 ILCS 500/45-45). 

x

x





STATE OF ILLINOIS 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

State of Illinois RFP 32 
Section 3. Part F. Standard Terms and Conditions 
V.16.1 

SECTION 3. 

F.1. TERM AND TERMINATION:

1.1. TERM OF THIS CONTRACT:  This contract has an initial term of three (3) years.  If a start date is not 
identified, then the term shall commence upon the last dated signature of the Parties. 

1.1.1. In no event will the total term of this contract, including the initial term, any renewal terms and 
any extensions, exceed ten (10) years. 

1.1.2. Vendor shall not commence billable work in furtherance of this contract prior to final execution 
of this contract except when permitted pursuant to 30 ILCS 500/20-80. 

1.2. RENEWAL:  Subject to the maximum total term identified above, the State has the option to renew for the 
following term(s):  up to two years, in any combination of full or partial year terms. 

1.2.1. Pricing for the renewal term(s), or the formula for determining price, is shown in the pricing 
section of this contract. 

1.2.2. Any renewal of this contract is subject to the same terms and conditions as apply to the initial 
term of this  contract unless otherwise provided in the pricing section.  The State may renew this 
contract for any or all of the option periods specified, may exercise any of the renewal options 
early, and may exercise more than one option at a time based on continuing need and favorable 
market conditions, when in the best interest of the State.  This contract may neither renew 
automatically nor renew solely at the Vendor’s option. 

1.3. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  The State may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, immediately 
upon notice to the Vendor if:  (a) the State determines that the actions or inactions of the Vendor, its 
agents, employees or subcontractors have caused, or reasonably could cause, jeopardy to health, safety, 
or property, or (b) the Vendor has notified the State that it is unable or unwilling to perform this 
contract. 

If Vendor fails to perform any material requirement of this contract to the State’s satisfaction, is in 
violation of a material provision of this contract, or the State determines that the Vendor lacks the 
financial resources to perform the contract, then the State shall provide written notice to the Vendor to 
cure the problem identified within the period of time specified in the State’s written notice. If not cured 
by that date the State may either: (a) immediately terminate this contract without additional written 
notice or (b) enforce the terms and conditions of this contract. 

For termination due to any of the causes contained in this Section, the State retains its rights to seek any 
available legal or equitable remedies and damages. 

1.4. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  The State may, for its convenience and with thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice to Vendor, terminate this contract in whole or in part and without payment of 
any penalty or incurring any further obligation to the Vendor. If Vendor is selected to serve as an 
underwriter of the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority's  securities, any termination provisions 
contained in a Bond Purchase Agreement relating to such securities shall supersede the provisions of 
sections 1.3 and 1.4 hereof.





State of Illinois RFP 34 
Section3. Part F. Standard Terms and Conditions 
V.16.1 

2.6.1. Vendor shall not bill for any taxes unless accompanied by proof that the State is subject to the 
tax.  If necessary, Vendor may request the applicable Agency’s Illinois tax exemption number 
and Federal tax exemption information. 

2.6.2. Vendor shall invoice at the completion of this contract unless invoicing is tied in this contract to 
milestones, deliverables, or other invoicing requirements agreed to therein. 

Send invoices to: 

Agency: Illinois Tollway 

Attn: Procurement 

Address: P O Box 3094 

City, State Zip Lisle, Illinois 60532-8094 

F.3. ASSIGNMENT:  This contract may not be assigned or transferred in whole or in part by Vendor without the prior
written consent of the State, provided that the Vendor may without notice to the Illinois State Toll Highway 

Authority assign its rights and obligations under this contract to any other wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of America 
Corporation to which all or substantially all of the Vendor's public finance municipal markets business may be transfered 
under this contract.

F.4. SUBCONTRACTING:  For purposes of this section, subcontractors are those specifically hired to perform all or
part of the work covered by this contract.  Vendor must receive prior written approval before use of any 
subcontractors in the performance of this contract.  Vendor shall describe, in an attachment if not already 
provided, the names and addresses of all authorized subcontractors to be utilized by Vendor in the performance 
of this contract, together with a description of the work to be performed by the subcontractor and the 
anticipated amount of money that each subcontractor is expected to receive pursuant to this contract.  If 
required, Vendor shall provide a copy of any subcontracts within fifteen (15) days after execution of this 
contract.  All subcontracts must include the same certifications that Vendor must make as a condition of this 
contract.  Vendor shall include in each subcontract the subcontractor certifications as shown on the Standard 
Certification form available from the State. If at any time during the term of the Contract, Vendor adds or 
changes any subcontractors, then Vendor must promptly notify, by written amendment to the Contract, the 
State Purchasing Officer or the Chief Procurement Officer of the names and addresses and the expected amount 
of money that each new or replaced subcontractor will receive pursuant to the Contract. 

F.5. AUDIT/RETENTION OF RECORDS:  Vendor and its subcontractors shall maintain books and records relating to
the performance of this contract and any subcontract necessary to support amounts charged to the State 
pursuant this contract or subcontract.  Books and records, including information stored in databases or other 
computer systems, shall be maintained by the Vendor for a period of three (3) years from the later of the date of 
final payment under this contract or completion of the contract, and by the subcontractor(s) for a period of 
three (3) years from the later of final payment under the term or completion of the subcontract.  If Federal 
funds are used to pay contract costs, the Vendor and its subcontractors must retain their respective records for 
five (5) years.  Books and records required to be maintained under this section shall be available for review or 
audit by representatives of:  the procuring Agency/University, the Auditor General, the Executive Inspector 
General, the Chief Procurement Officer, State of Illinois internal auditors or other governmental entities with 
monitoring authority, upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours.  Vendor and its subcontractors 
shall cooperate fully with any such audit and with any investigation conducted by any of these entities.  Failure 
to maintain books and records required by this section shall establish a presumption in favor of the State for the 
recovery of any funds paid by the State under this contract or any subcontract for which adequate books and 
records are not available to support the purported disbursement. The Vendor or subcontractors shall not 













BANK OF AMERICA 

EXCEPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 

TO THE SPECIFICATIONS 

Standard Terms and Conditions 

2.4   Prevailing Wage 

Because Bank of America is a financial services institution bidding on work to provide financial services 

to the Authority, it respectfully submits that it is exempt from the prevailing wage provision.  Although 

the Bank submits that the prevailing wage is not applicable, the Bank pays all of its associates 

competitively based on market rates in relevant locations and in all instances pays in accordance with 

the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and applicable state wage laws. 

F.5   Audit/Retention of Records

Bank of America, in accordance with applicable regulations, complies with regulatory agencies in 

response to and cooperation with reviews and investigations.  We confine access to our facilities and 

records by regulatory agencies in order to ensure privacy and work to answer any questions they may 

have. 

F.12 Insurance

 Bank of America cannot guarantee the requested insurance is maintained throughout the life of the 

contract, but intends to continue to purchase as long as it is commercially available and economically 

attractive. All of Bank of America’s insurers have an A.M. Best rating of A- Class VII or better.  

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Bank of America can comply 

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance

Bank of America can comply 

Bank of America maintains Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) insurance on a claims-made basis 

providing coverage for loss or damage due to an act, error, omission, or negligence of Bank of America 

employees. 

Bank of America’s General Liability and Auto Liability include a blanket additional insured provision for 

any entity required by contract or agreement to be an additional insured.  Due to the size of Bank of 

America, we cannot provide individual additional insured endorsements or riders.  The Certificate of 

Insurance will evidence the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority as additional insured as required by 

written contract. The Bank’s Commercial General Liability policy only will be Primary and Non-

Contributory.  

Bank of America’s deductibles and/or retentions are not public information. Bank of America will furnish 

certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage referenced herein. 

Bank of America reserves the right to obtain all insurance required under this contract through a 

program of self-insurance. 



BANK OF AMERICA 

EXCEPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 

TO THE SPECIFICATIONS 

F.14 Solicitation and Employment 

Due to Bank of America's ("Bank") size and its geographic scope, it may be difficult to confirm in all 

circumstances whether an applicant or employee previously worked for the State.  However, the Bank 

will not knowingly recruit or hire any current or former State employees who have worked on the 

Contract or had any influence on the decisions affecting the Contract.  Furthermore, Bank of America is 

committed to the highest standards of ethical and professional conduct.  The Bank's Code of Ethics 

provides guidelines of business practice, and professional and personal conduct that all associates must 

adopt and uphold.  In part, the Code of Ethics requires Bank associates to avoid conflicts or the 

appearance of conflicts, between personal interests and the interests of the Bank, its shareholders, and 

our customers, to avoid misuse of material, nonpublic information relating to securities or other 

financial instruments, and to promptly report any knowledge or information about Bank of America 

associates or agents they suspect of committing crimes.  In addition, any contracts or commitments 

must be based on objective business standards to avoid any real or perceived favoritism. 

F.16   Background Check

In accordance with Bank of America's ("Bank") job application and applicant acknowledgment form, 

employment with the Bank in the United States is contingent upon a satisfactory background check, 

including criminal background check.  The purpose of the US-based background check program is to 

reduce the risk of hiring individuals who could jeopardize the safety and security of Bank of America’s 

customers, shareholders and employees.  In accordance with the Bank's criminal background check 

process, applicants offered employment are generally fingerprinted and the prints are sent to the FBI to 

identify any criminal convictions.  As a financial institution, Bank of America is regulated by the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Act (FDIC); and, therefore, must remain in compliance with the guidelines set forth in 

Section 19 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act.  In accordance with Section 19, the Bank does not hire 

any applicants with convictions for FDIC regulated offenses (which includes convictions for certain 

criminal offenses involving dishonesty and breach of trust).  In addition, the Bank does not employ 

individuals with convictions for felony crimes of violence, sexual assault, felony convictions, any crimes 

against children, kidnapping and the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution of or trafficking in controlled 

substances, among other crimes.   

The Bank generally does not disclose the results of background checks to third parties, but if the state 

has specific concerns about the suitability of a Bank associate to work on the contract, it should direct 

those concerns to the Client Manager who will promptly investigate the issue.   

F.17.1   Prevailing Wage

See 2.4--Prevailing Wage above. 

F. 17.2   Equal Opportunity

Attached are copies of Bank of America’s Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action and 

Harassment and Discrimination Prevention policies.  Bank of America takes its obligations under Federal 

and State laws seriously and complies with applicable federal and state regulations concerning fair 

employment practices and working conditions. As mentioned above, our policies are written for all of 

our associates located throughout the U.S. and based on the federal regulations.  Bank of America is 

committed to maintaining a workplace free of unlawful harassment and discrimination based on race, 



BANK OF AMERICA 

EXCEPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 

TO THE SPECIFICATIONS 

color, religion, sex (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, gender 

identity, disability, veteran status or any other factors prohibited by law (“prohibited behavior”).  The 

company considers such behavior unacceptable and contrary to our core values in that it undermines 

our goal of providing an inclusive environment.  The company does not tolerate any violation of this 

policy.   

F.26.2   Veteran/Ex-Offender Reporting

Bank of America is unable to provide the state with the requested report given that we do not track the 

ex-offender status of our new hires.  
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AGENCY
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Policy # RWD943546102 (08/01/2016 - 08/01/2017) XL Insurance America, Inc. 

Charlotte

-------------------------------------------------

Carriers and Policy Numbers:
Workers Compensation and Employers Liability (continued from page 1)

The certificate holder is an additional insured under General Liability as their interest may appear, but only if required by written contract with the named insured.
The General Liability limit shall not exceed the amount stated in the contract between Bank of America Corporation and the certificate holder.

Certificate of Liability Insurance

----------------------------------------

055943

Including the following state(s): AL AR AZ CA CO CT DC DE FL GA HI IA ID L IN KS KY LA MA MD ME MI MN MO MS MT NC NE NH NJ NM NV NY OK OR PA RI SC SD TN TX 

Including the following state(s): AK, WI 

This policy is subject to a Self-Insured Retention of $1,000,000 per accident. 

Policy No. #RWE943546302 (08/01/2016 - 08/01/2017) XL Specialty Insurance Company 

               Marsh USA Inc.
               and any and all subsidiaries
               Bank of America Corporation

               One Bank of America Center
               Mail Code: NC1-028-16-01

               Charlotte, NC  28255-0001
               150 North College Street

25

UT VA VT WV 
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 AND ANY AND ALL SUBSIDIARIES
 BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
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 MAIL CODE NC1-028-16-01
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25







STATE OF ILLINOIS 
STATE SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS 

State of Illinois RFP 40 
Section 3. Part H. State Supplemental Provisions 
V.16.1 

H.1. State Supplemental Provisions:

Illinois Tollway Definitions 

Click here to enter text. 

Required Federal Clauses, Certifications and Assurances 

Click here to enter text. 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) Requirements 

Click here to enter text. 

Public Works Requirements (construction and maintenance of a public work)  820 ILCS 130/4. 

Click here to enter text. 

Prevailing Wage (janitorial cleaning, window cleaning, building and grounds, site technician, natural 
resources, food services, security services, and printing, if valued at more than $200 per month or 
$2,000 per year)  30 ILCS 500/25-60. 

Click here to enter text. 

Illinois Tollway Specific Terms and Conditions 

Click here to enter text. 

Other (describe) 

Click here to enter text. 

1.1 TOLLWAY SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS: 

Definitions 

Required Federal Clauses, Certifications and Assurances 

ARRA Requirements (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009) 

Public Works Requirements (construction and maintenance of a public work) (820 ILCS 
130/4) 

Prevailing Wage (janitorial cleaning, window cleaning, building and grounds, site technician, 
natural resources, food services, and security services, if valued at more than $200 per 
month or $2000 per year (30 ILCS 500/25-60) 

Prevailing Wage (all printing contracts) (30 ILCS 500/25-60) 

BEP Subcontracting Requirements (Utilization Plan and Letter of Intent) 

PAYMENT OF TOLLS: The Vendor shall be required to pay the full amount of tolls, if 
any, incurred by it during the duration of the contract.  Said tolls will not be 



State of Illinois RFP 41 
Section 3. Part H. State Supplemental Provisions 
V.16.1 

refunded by the Illinois Tollway.  Furthermore, in the event that a final 
determination is made by the Illinois Tollway that the Contractor has failed to pay 
any required tolls and associated fines, the Illinois Tollway is authorized to take 
steps necessary to withhold the amounts of the unpaid tolls and fines from any 
payment due the contractor by the Illinois Tollway and/or other Tollway of Illinois 
office, department, commission, board or agency. 

1.2 AGENCY SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
1.2.1 Order of Precedence: 

This contract Request for Proposal (RFP), taken together, comprises the Contract between 
the parties.  With respect to any inconsistency or conflict among these documents the 
following order of precedence shall prevail: 
1. This Contract
2. The RFP
3. Other submissions received after the initial proposal as part of the renegotiation

process, if applicable and agreed upon

1.2.2 

1.2.3 

1.2.4 

1.2.5 

1.2.6 

1.2.7 

Agents and Employees: 
Vendor shall be responsible for the negligent acts and omissions of its agents, employees and 
if applicable, subcontractors in their performance of Vendor’s duties under this Contract. 
Vendor represents that it shall utilize the services of individuals skilled in the profession for 
which they will be used in performing services or supplying goods hereunder.  In the event 
that the Tollway/Buyer determines that any individual performing services or supplying 
goods for Vendor hereunder is not providing such skilled services or delivery of goods, it shall 
promptly notify the Vendor and the Vendor shall replace that individual. 

Publicity: 
Vendor shall not, in any advertisement or any other type of solicitation for business, state, 
indicate or otherwise imply that it is under contract to the Tollway/Buyer nor shall the 
Tollway/Buyer’s name be used in any such advertisement or solicitation without prior 
written approval except as required by law. or consented to by the State.

Consultation: 
Vendor shall keep the Tollway/Buyer fully informed as to the progress of matters covered by 
this Contract.  Where time permits and Vendor is not otherwise prohibited from so doing, 
Vendor shall offer the Tollway/Buyer the opportunity to review relevant documents prior to 
filing with any public body or adversarial party. 

Third Party Beneficiaries: 
There are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract. This Contract is intended only to 
benefit the Tollway/Buyer and the Vendor. 

Successors In Interest: 
All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Contract shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns and legal 
representatives. 

Vendor’s Termination Duties: 
The Vendor, upon receipt of notice of termination or upon request of the Tollway/Buyer, 
shall: 

1.2.7.1 Cease work under this Contract and take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit 
disbursements and minimize costs, and furnish a report within thirty (30) days of 
the date of notice of termination, describing the status of all work under the 
Contract, including, without limitation, results accomplished, conclusions resulting 
there from, any other matters the Tollway/Buyer may require;  
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Section 3. Part H. State Supplemental Provisions 
V.16.1 

1.2.7.2 Immediately cease using and return to the Tollway/Buyer any personal property or 
materials, whether tangible or intangible, provided by the Tollway/Buyer to the 
Vendor;  

1.2.7.3 Comply with the Tollway/Buyer’s instructions for the timely transfer of any active 
files and work product produced by the Vendor under this Contract;  

1.2.7.4 Cooperate in good faith with the Tollway/Buyer, its employees, agents and 
contractors during the transition period between the notification of termination 
and the substitution of any replacement contractor;   

1.2.7.5 Immediately return to the Tollway/Buyer any payments made by the 
Tollway/Buyer for services that were not rendered by the Vendor. 

1.3 OVERTIME: 
If overtime is contemplated and provided for in this contract, all work performed by Vendor at overtime 
rates shall be pre-approved by the Tollway/Buyer.  

1.4 VENUE AND ILLINOIS LAW: 
Any claim against the Tollway arising out of this contract must be filed exclusively with Circuit Court for 
the Eighteenth Judicial Circuit, DuPage County, Illinois for State claims and the U.S. District Court for the 
Northern District of Illinois for Federal claims. 

1.4.1 Whenever “State” is used or referenced in this Contract, it shall be interpreted to mean the 
Illinois State Toll Highway Authority. 

1.4.2 The State Prompt Payment Act (30 ILCS 40) does not apply to the Tollway.  Therefore, the 
first two sentences of paragraph 2.1 are deleted.  

1.4.3. The Tollway is not currently an appropriated agency. Therefore, to the extent paragraph 1.5 
concerns the Tollway being an appropriated agency, it does not apply. 

1.4.4. The invoice submission deadline included in the second sentence of above paragraph 2.6 
does not apply to the Tollway.  Therefore, the second sentence of this paragraph is stricken.  
However, the remainder of the paragraph remains in effect. 

1.5 REPORT OF A CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES: 
The (Contractor/Vendor) agrees to report to the TOLLWAY as soon as practically possible, but no later 
than 21 days following any change in facts or circumstances that might impact the 
(CONTRACTOR/VENDOR)’s ability to satisfy its legal or contractual responsibilities and obligations under 
this contract.  Required reports include, but are not limited to changes in the (CONTRACTOR/VENDOR)’s 
Certification/Disclosure Forms, the (CONTRACTOR/VENDOR)’s IDOT pre-qualification, or any certification 
or licensing required for this project.  Additionally, (CONTRACTOR/VENDOR) agrees to report to the 
Tollway within the above timeframe any arrests, indictments, convictions or other matters involving the 
(CONTRACTOR/VENDOR), or any of its principals, that might occur while this contract is in effect.  This 
reporting requirement does not apply to common offenses, including but not limited to minor 
traffic/vehicle offenses.   

Further, the (CONTRACTOR/VENDOR) agrees to incorporate substantially similar reporting requirements 
into the terms of any and all subcontracts relating to work performed under this agreement.  The 
(CONTRACTOR/VENDOR) agrees to forward or relay to the Tollway any reports received from 
subcontractors pursuant to this paragraph within 21 days.   

Finally, the (CONTRACTOR/VENDOR) acknowledges and agrees that the failure of the 
(CONTRACTOR/VENDOR) to comply with this reporting requirement shall constitute a material breach of 
contract which may result in this contract being declared void.



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE 

State of Illinois RFP 43 
Section 3. Part I. Subcontractor Disclosures 
V.16.1 

I.1. 

I.2. 

I.3. 

Will subcontractors be utilized?   Yes  No 
A subcontractor is a person or entity that enters into a contractual agreement with a total value of $50,000 or 
more with a person or entity who has a contract subject to the Illinois Procurement Code pursuant to which the 
person or entity provides some or all of the goods, services, real property, remuneration, or other monetary 
forms of consideration that are the subject of the primary State contract, including subleases from a lessee of a 
State contract.   

All contracts with subcontractors must include Standard Certifications completed and signed by the 
subcontractor. 

The maximum percentage of the goods or services that are the subject of this Offer and the resulting 
contract that may be subcontracted is N/A. 

Please identify below subcontracts with an annual value of $50,000 or more that will be utilized in the 
performance of the contract, the names and addresses of the subcontractors, and a description of the work to 
be performed by each.  

• Subcontractor Name:  N/A

Anticipated/Estimated Amount to Be Paid:  N/A

• Address:  N/A

Description of Work:  N/A

• Subcontractor Name:  N/A

Anticipated/Estimated Amount to Be Paid:  N/A

• Address:  N/A

Description of Work:  N/A

If additional space is necessary to provide subcontractor information, please attach an additional page. 

I.4. For the subcontractors identified above, the Offeror must provide each subcontractor’s Financial Disclosures 
and Conflicts of Interest to the State. 

I.5. If the subcontractor is registered in the Illinois Procurement Gateway (IPG) and the Offeror is using the 
subcontractor’s Standard Certifications or Financial Disclosures and Conflicts of Interest from the IPG, then the 
Offeror must also provide a completed Forms B for the subcontractor. 

x






























































































































